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THE UAE-BANGlADESH INVESTMENT COMPANY lIMITED
ERECTORS HOUSE, 5TH FlOOR NORTHERN WING, 18 KEMAl ATATURK AVENUE, BANANI C/A, DHAKA-1213, BANGlADESH

NOTICE OF THE 28TH ANNUAl GENERAl MEETING

March 6, 2016

To:     The Shareholders 

As desired by the Chairman of the UAE-Bangladesh Investment Company limited, notice is hereby given that the 
28th Annual General Meeting of the company will be held on March 30, 2016  at 12:00 Noon at “The Westin Dhaka”,  
Main Gulshan Avenue, Plot 01, Road  45, Gulshan 2, Dhaka 1212 to transact the following businesses: 

AGenDA

01. To confirm the minutes of the 27th Annual General Meeting held on 28-01-2015.

02. To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and Auditor’s Report along with Audited Financial Statements for 
the year ended 31 December 2015.

03. To declare cash dividend out of net profit for the year 2015 as recommended by the Board of Directors.

04. To appoint auditor of the company for the year 2016 and fix their remuneration.

05. Any other business

 By order of the Board

 Signed-
 Md. Faruk Hossain
 Company Secretary



Section - A

GeneRAl InFoRMATIon



To contribute in Socio Economic
Development process of Bangladesh

Invest in financially viable projects with
the private sector for Socio-Economic
development of the country

Our Vision

Our Mission
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* Make investment in financially viable projects in Bangladesh

* Promote products and services as suitable for Bangladesh

* Participate in promotion, formation, management, orperation 

and financing of projects in Bangladesh

* Establish subsidiary companies, participate in the Equity 

Capital in collaboration with the local entrepreneurs of financial 

institutions to promote economic cooperation and advancement 

of financially viable projects

* Promote innovation and creativity

* Implement an efficient ICT system

O B J E C T I V E S



38%
Trade and 

Commerce

3%
Garments and 
Knitwear

3%
Textile

2%
Paper, Printing and 
Packaging

22%
Agriculture

3%
Housing

1 %
Power

28%
Others (SME

Finance & Others)

Sector Wise Investment
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Registered name : uAe-Bangladesh Investment Company limited

Registered office : 18 Kemal Ataturk Avenue, Banani, Dhaka-1213, Bangladesh                                                          
phone: +8802-9888203 , Fax:+8802-58810718

Company e-mail : ubico@dhaka.net; ubinco@dhaka.net

Corporate website : www.ubinco.com

legal Form : A joint venture private limited company

Company Registration No. : C-16846(472)/87

Bangladesh Bank license No. : FI (non-Banking) Department /Dhaka/8/95

Shareholders : Government of United Arab Emirates & Government of the People’s 
Republic of Bangladesh

Auditors : AZIZ HAlIM KHAIR CHOUDHURY
Chartered Accountants
61, Suhrawardy Avenue (1st floor)
Baridhara, Dhaka-1212

legal Advisors : Mr. Rafique- ul Huq, Bar. At law
Kamal ul Alam, Bar. At law
Mr. Sayed Rezaur Rahman, Advocate
Mr. Forrukh Rahman, Bar. At law

Membership : Foreign Industries Chamber of Commerce and Industry
International Chamber of Commerce and Industry
The Institute of Bankers, Bangladesh

Certification : ISo 9001:2008 Certified

Company Information
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Board of Directors
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Chairman’s 
Message

The company follows appropriate governance policy to ensure 
continuity of its activities and maintaining sustainability. We 
are committed to observing the highest standards of integrity 
and regularity compliance in all aspects of our work.

“
”
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Chairman’s 
Message

Bismillahir Rahmanur Rahim

I am delighted to present you with our Annual Report 
2015. By the grace of Almighty Allah, we have achieved 
another year with satisfactory growth. 

Bangladesh has sustained a robust and resilient 
economic growth rate of more than 6% in the past 
several years. In 2015, output grew by 6.5%, up from 
6.1% in 2014, despite political turmoil in the third 
quarter. Although the share of private consumption 
in GDP has trended downwards in recent years, 
household spending continued to propel the 
economy in 2015, supported by lower inflation, 
higher workers’ remittances and farm incomes, and 
rising public sector wages and transfer payments.

Garment exports, accounting for more than 80% of 
total exports, were sluggish on subdued orders from 
Europe and lower cotton prices. Despite favourable 
workers’ remittances, strong import demand and 
tepid export of goods pushed the current account 
balance into a deficit of 0.8% of GDP in 2015, the first 
shortfall in three years. Inflation dropped slightly to 
6.4% in 2015 amid a vigilant monetary policy and a 
stable exchange rate that enabled pass-through of 
lower global food prices.

Against the backdrop of challenging environment, 
I am pleased to announce that performance of 
UBICO remained healthier. While our focus remains 
on venture capital financing in the form of equity 
or quasi equity, we have increased our investment 
activities through other financial institutions and 
renowned micro-finance institutions as investment 
partners. This is an important strategy through which 
we can deploy our resources for a continuous benefit 
of the economy. In line with the policy of Bangladesh 
government, our focus for investment remains for 

development of small and medium entrepreneurs 
which is considerable portion of the total investment 
portfolio. During 2015, we have achieved a better year 
on year revenue growth of 3.12 and return on equity 
by 6.96%. Our company has declared cash dividend of 
20% for the year 2015.

The company follows appropriate governance policy 
to ensure continuity of its activities and maintaining 
sustainability. We are committed to observing 
the highest standards of integrity and regularity 
compliance in all aspects of our work. Regular board 
meeting and audit committee meeting, duly attended 
by board members, take place. 

Our company continuously looks forward to 
participate in socio-economic development of 
Bangladesh by investing in private sector. We always 
look for meaningful ideas to participate and achieve 
our mission. UBICO has engaged in a number of CSR 
and charitable causes throughout the year focusing 
on areas of education, natural calamity, and culture. 

Finally, let me express appreciation to my fellow 
board members for their continued wise stewardship 
and strategic guidance. I would like to express my 
appreciation to our management team for achieving 
continuous growth and excellent result. I take this 
opportunity to thank Bangladesh Bank for their 
guidance and support extended to our company.

May Allah shower his blessing upon us all.

 

Faisal Al Suwaidi 
Chairman
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Managing 
Director’s Review

 Keeping in line with our mission and vision, wehave adopted 
a prudent risk policy in targeting and selecting investment 
opportunities. We alwaysprioritize with minimum risk and 
maximum impacton our investment activities.

“
”
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Assalamu Alaikum,

I would like to express my deep gratitude to the 
almighty Allah for enabling me to pass another 
successful year with the company.

Bangladesh achieved GDP growth in FY15 was 
6.15% compared to 6.06% in FY 14. The achievement 
of such high growth despite the sluggish 
investment scenario, infrastructural constraints 
and slow execution of government development 
projects, amid the general lack of confidence due 
to the renewed political turmoil during the first 
half of 2015, is a testament to the resilience of the 
Bangladesh economy. 

Investments made in Bangladesh stood around BDT 
4,348.38 bn, which is 29.0% of the GDP. Bangladesh 
was the 10th highest remittance earning country of 
the world in 2015. Remittance is the second largest 
source of foreign currency for Bangladesh. In FY 15, 
total remittance inflow was USD 15.31 bn, which was 
7.6% higher than that in the previous fiscal year. The 
number overseas employment in 2015 was 555.88 
thousands, 30.6% higher than the previous year. 
The foreign exchange (forex) reserve of the country 
has been growing strongly for the past few years 
reaching record highs over and over. This strong 
growth momentum continued throughout FY 15. 
As of Dec 15, the total forex reserve of the country 
stood at USD 27.45 bn, a record high. Increased 
participation in world export, healthy remittance 
flow, rising foreign loans by private sector, and 
stable FDI & FPI made it possible for the country 
to accumulate such high level of reserve. Another 
significant achievement was increase in the Gross 
National Income, which graduated Bangladesh to 
lower-middle income status.              

During the year 2015, we have strengthened 
our several operational areas. We maintained a 
qualitative loans and advances portfolio and at the 
same time continued to take the prudent approach 
to manage the balance sheet, maintain a strong 
liquidity position and keep a watchful eye on asset 
quality. In spite of prevailing challenging situation, 
UBICO posted a satisfactory result in 2015. During 
the year, UBICO posted a positive profit trend. Asset 
of the company grew by 6.31% and investment 
portfolio increased by 33.86%.

Our success is founded on ethical leadership, 
teamwork and a commitment in providing value 

for all stakeholders. UBICO has rightly recognized 
that a happy team is very important for success 
of the company. As a part of company’s human 
resource development program, a large number of 
employees were sent to different training programs, 
which included both managerial and technical 
development. We have re-organized our treasury 
department for handling its operation more 
efficiently. We have organized a separate IT unit to 
gradually convert our operation in a more efficient 
and less paper consuming activities. 

UBICO believes that society is one of its contributors 
to business development and always tries to give 
back by playing a major role in CSR programmes. 
Being responsive to the environment, we have 
already introduced Green Banking Policy. Our aim is 
to do best to ensure that the credit we extend to our 
customers are utilized for environmentally sound 
and sustainable purposes.

The company is committed to identify, monitor and 
manage the risks associated the business activities. 
To guard against the risk of financial crime within 
our business, we focus in training our employees, 
strengthening our screening system and ensuring 
that our policies and procedures are effective and 
up to date. To evaluate the company’s risks, we have 
an Asset liability Management Committee (AlCO) 
formed by the senior officials.  We devote our efforts 
to minimize the damaging effects of financial crimes 
on our business, our customers, and community. 
Money laundering, a criminal act recognized all 
over the world has very severe consequence in 
the economy and security of the society. The 
management has evolved such a culture for the 
company so that all the employees strictly adhere 
to each and every provision of Money laundering 
regulations. We are also sincere to comply with the 
regulatory guidelines. In compliance with the Central 
Bank regulations, we have adopted proper Green 
Banking, SME Financing and Money laundering 
Prevention policies.

Keeping in line with our mission and vision, we 
have adopted a prudent risk policy in targeting 
and selecting investment opportunities. We always 
prioritize with minimum risk and maximum impact 
on our investment activities. Till date we have been 
successful in maintaining zero non-performance 
loan (NPl). Our Risk Management Forum (RMF) is 
also fully conscious in maintaining quality of our 
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investment activities. As advised by the Central 
Bank to minimize market risk, we have adopted 
sensitivity analysis and stress testing practice. We 
have implemented liquidity risk management 
system through proper budgeting  and forecasting 
of liquidity requirements.

Our organization has achieved ISO Certificate 9001-
2008 which took a process of our 2 years with a 
long step to follow and maintain. So far we are the 
only Financial Institution in Bangladesh which has 
achieved the same. 

Ethic is a key to business success. UBICO adheres 
to the highest ethical standards and beliefs. The 
company prioritizes statutory compliance and has 
a code of conduct for employees, who are required 
to read, understand and follow this document. We 
have an Integrity Committee which focuses on good 
governance.

Being fully aware that, the economic and political 
scenario of Bangladesh will not change dramatically, 
we are totally positive to increase our investment 
activities. We shall make all out effort in this regard 

to explore diversified avenue to be more effective 
through proactive investment activities in promoting 
socio-economic development of Bangladesh.

 Finally on behalf of the management team, I would 
like to express my heartiest gratitude to our Board of 
Directors for their active support, proper guidance 
and inspiration. I also thankfully acknowledge the 
support and cooperation that the company received 
from Ministry of Finance, Bangladesh Bank and 
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms. I would 
like to thank my colleagues in management team 
for their dedication and hard work to continue our 
successful journey.

Allah Hafez

Dr. S. M. Akbar

Managing Director  
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The Directors are pleased to present the financial 
results of the company as at the close of financial 
year 2015 together with the Directors’ Report for the 
events that occurred during 2015.

economic Review

Despite political agitation early in 2015 that 
adversely affected transport services, exports, and 
private investment, growth in Bangladesh held up 
well because of brisk domestic demand, boosted 
by higher worker remittances, private sector wages, 
and public investment.

Inflation moderated in FY2015 much as forecast in 
ADO (Asian Development Outlook) 2015 from 7.4% 
a year earlier, reflecting large public stocks of food 
grains, normal weather, a supportive monetary 
policy, and lower global food and commodity prices 
that a steady exchange rate allowed to passed 
through.

Export growth was 3.3% in FY2015, down 
significantly from 12.1% in FY2014. Garments—
accounting for about 80% of total exports— grew 
slowly by 4.1%, reflecting supply chains disrupted 
by political demonstrations in early 2015, soft 
demand from the European Union and the US, 
and a marked decline in prices for cotton, a major 
input cost that can affect pricing. Imports rose by 
11.2%, accelerating from 8.9% growth in FY2014. 
larger imports of food grains, machinery, fertilizer, 
and industrial raw materials helped to propel the 

expansion. As exports grew significantly more slowly 
than imports, the trade deficit widened markedly.

Despite a strong recovery in remittances, the current 
account recorded a small deficit slightly higher than 
the ADO 2015 forecast.
Selected economic indicators (%) - Bangladesh 2015 2016
 ADO  Update ADO  Update
GDP Growth 6.1 6.5 6.4 6.7
Inflation 6.5 6.4 6.2 6.2
Current Account Balance (share of GDP) -0.5 -0.8 0.5 -0.5

Source: Asian Development Outlook 2015 Update

economic prospects

The GDP growth forecast for FY2016 is revised 
somewhat higher still with the expectation that 
exports will grow with continued economic 
recovery in the US and the euro area, strong 
expansion in remittances will boost consumption 
demand, private and public investment will pick up 
as the business climate improves under a stabilizing 
political situation, and spending will increase under 
the annual development program.

The ADO 2015 Update retains the ADO 2015 
projection for average inflation in FY2016, which 
matches the central bank’s monetary policy 
statement. Although higher public sector wages 
and upward adjustments to administered prices for 
natural gas and electricity from 1 September 2015 
will exert inflationary pressure, the easing of supply 
constraints, a cautious monetary policy, and a better 
crop outlook should keep inflation in check.

Director’s Report
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Export growth in FY2016 is projected to improve to 
6.0% as economic growth in the euro area and the 
US strengthens. Imports are projected to increase 
by 13.0%, mainly for capital goods, industrial raw 
materials, and food grains. Despite the expansion in 
remittances, the larger trade deficit will likely mean a 
current account deficit narrower than in FY2015 but 
failing to achieve the small surplus projected in ADO 
2015.

Excerpted from the Asian Development Outlook 
2015 Update.

uBICo’s operation strategy

The operational strategy of UAE-Bangladesh 
Investment Company limited is to participate 
in the socio-economic development activity of 
Bangladesh. Its main focuses are revolved around to 
contribute for (i) sustainable economic growth and 
(ii) social development.

Taking into account the inherent risk factors, our 
current operation are mainly focused on private 
sector development, supporting existing investment 
through capacity development, encouraging the 
growth of small and medium enterprises, promoting 
women entrepreneurs. UBICO is assisting the 
private sector of Bangladesh to play an increasingly 
important role in the socio-economic development 
of Bangladesh.  

Going Concern 

Going concern is a fundamental principle underlying 
the preparation of the financial statements of a 
company. Bangladesh Accounting Standards require 
Directors to consider whether there are material 
uncertainties that would lead to significant doubt 
about a company’s ability to continue for foreseeable 
period. 

The financial statements of UBICO have been 
prepared on a going concern basis. In making this 
assessment, the Directors have considered a wide 
range of information relating to present and future 
conditions covering principal activities, strategic 
directions and challenges and uncertainties 
together with a review of the income statement, 
financial position and risk profile. In addition the 
Directors have considered the future projections of 
profitability, cash flows, asset quality, the outcome of 
various stress tests and capital resources in making 
their assessment. After assessment, the Directors are 

satisfied that the Company has adequate resources 
to continue its operation for the foreseeable future 
and therefore continue to adopt the going concern 
basis in preparing the financial statements. 

Fairness of the Accounts 

The Directors accept responsibility for the annual 
financial statements, which have been prepared 
using appropriate accounting  policies  supported  
by reasonable and prudent judgements and 
estimates, in conformity  with  International  Financial  
Reporting Standards  (IFRS)  and  the  requirements  
of  Companies Act,  1994.  The Directors are  of  the  
opinion  that  the financial  statements  give  a  true  
and  fair  view  of  the state  of  the  financial  affairs  of  
the  Company  and  of their profits for the year ended 
31 December, 2015.

Corporate Governance 

Sound and effective corporate governance has 
always been a priority for UBICO. The Board of 
Directors and management of UBICO are committed 
to govern and maintain Company’s operations 
effectively within its regulatory environment. 
UBICO’s corporate governance policies are designed 
to strengthen the ability of the Board to effectively 
supervise management and enhance long term 
shareholder value. In 2015 UBICO Board reviewed 
and approved Procurement Policy, CSR Policy, 
Treasury Policy, Guidelines on Assets liability 
Management, Guidelines on Internal Control & 
Compliance, Guidelines on ICT Security, Employees 
Health Care Policy, Internal Audit Process Manual, 
Credit Policy and Strategic Plan from 2016 to 2020.  

ISo Certificate 

As a sign of good corporate governance, UBICO 
obtained ISO certificate on its management system. 
We are the only financial institution who got this 
certificate from Bangladesh Standards and Testing 
Institution (BSTI).

Human Resource

UBICO Board is always concerned that satisfied 
human capital is the main asset for an organization. 
In this view Board engaged a HR consultant to review 
and restructure the pay package.  
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Investment Activities 

During the year 15 investment proposals were 
presented before the Board for their approval and 
12 proposals were approved by them. Investment 
activities grew by 33.86% over the previous year.

Recovery position

We have received all installments against our term 
loan finance on time as per repayment schedule. 

Financial Highlights:

The Directors are pleased to submit the audited 
financial statements of the company for the year 
ended 31 December 2015.

In the year 2015, the net assets of the company have 
increased by 5.88% compared to last year. This is a 
positive scenario in spite of volatile investment and 
capital market position during this year. 

During 2015, revenue of the company has also 
increased by 3.12% compared to last year. This 
growth reveals the efficiency of operational and 
financial management of the company. 

The expenditures of the company were strictly 
controlled throughout the year 2015 and in line with 
the budget. However, the expenditures increased by 
1.66% in 2015 compared to the year 2014 mainly due 
to general price inflation and increase of business 
activities. 

In 2015, the company achieved investment target. 
Total loan portfolio was 33% higher than previous 
year. During the year money market encountered 
with huge idle money. As a result, both deposit and 
lending rate decreased drastically which affected 
profitability. Even after that we made a higher net 
profit which is satisfactory compared to the industry. 
Consequently, the following financial performances 
have improved:

- Return on equity of 6.96% is satisfactory. 

- Assets growth is 6.31% which is a significant 
achievement.

Special Reserve 

As per Article 71 of the Articles of Association of 
the Company, the company shall maintain special 
reserve up to 20% of the paid-up capital. Balance 
of special reserve is Tk 55,897,105 which is 5.59% of 

paid-up capital. The Board, therefore, recommended 
to appropriate 20% of net profit to the special 
reserve in this year.  

Statutory Reserve 

The Directors proposed to transfer 20% of net profit 
of 2015 to Statutory Reserve as per clause 6 of the 
Financial Institutions Regulations, 1994. 

Dividend 

Considering the scenario of the financial sector 
and current strength of the company, the Board of 
Directors has recommended 20% cash dividend for 
the year ended 31 December 2015. 

Corporate Social Responsibility

During the year 2015, UBICO has extended a fund of 
Tk 0.253 million (US$ 3,244 @ 1 US$ = Tk 78) to the 
following organization:  

name of the organization/person

Action Aid Bangladesh
To provide award to the freedom fighter, Mrs. 
Ferdousy Priobhashini, for her contribution of 
development of destitute women.

Mahin (a child)
To assist treatment of Cronic Kidney disease.

Mass people
To circulate integrity slogan.

Anjuman Mufidul Islam
To provide 1000 pcs blankets for the distribution 
among helpless cold affected people.

Board Meetings Held in 2015

The four meetings (50th, 51st, 52nd and 53rd 
meeting) of the Board of Directors of the company 
were held on 28 January 2015, 15 June 2015, 16 
September 2015 and 21 December 2015 respectively. 
The 27th Annual General Meeting of the company 
was held on 28 January 2015.

Annual General Meeting

The 28th Annual General Meeting of the Company is 
going to be held on March 30, 2016 to transact the 
following ordinary businesses:

To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended 
31 December 2015 including the reports of the 
Directors and Auditor
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To declare dividend for the year 2015 as 
recommended by the Board

To appoint the statutory auditor for the year 2016 
and fixation of their remuneration

Directors

The Directors representing the Government of 
Bangladesh as on December 31, 2015 were:

Dr. M Aslam Alam

Mrs. Mushfeka Ikfat

The directors representing the Abu Dhabi Fund for 
Development as on December 31, 2015 were:

Mr. Faisal Al Suwaidi

Mr. Mr. Mohammed Farooque Shaikh

Ms. Alia Saeed Ghobash

Auditors 

M/S Aziz Halim Khair Choudury, Chartered 
Accountants was appointed as auditors for the year 
2015 in the 27th Annual General Meeting of the 
company held on January 28, 2015. 

We would like to express our heartfelt thanks to 
the valued shareholders, clients and other business 
associates for their valuable support and cooperation 
extended during the last year and to the company’s 
dedicated team of human resources for their hard 
work and commitment for the development of the 
company. 

Thanking you.  

 On behalf of the Board                               

Dated, Dhaka  Mr. Md. eunusur Rahman     Mr. Faisal Al Suwaidi
March 30, 2016 Deputy Chairman  Chairman
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As of and for the years ended 31 December

(Figures in million Taka except ratios and per share data)

opeRATInG peRFoRMAnCe 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Operating revenue 146.72 142.28 132.87 115.31 85.75

Operating profit 106.05 102.28 97.73 84.20 62.89

Net profit 103.45 104.79 90.80 82.83 52.72

Earnings per share (EPS ) Taka in BDT 6,784 6,872 5,954 9,186 10,544

STATeMenT oF FInAnCIAl poSITIon

Current assets 767.02 866.50 926.89 918.30 453.77

Total assets 1,513.53 1,423.98 1,347.02 1,262.68 674.11

Property, plant and equipment at cost 11.94 7.43 6.91 6.65 6.27

Net current assets 755.47 861.16 914.29 915.00 451.85

long term liabilities 15.81 14.67 10.35 8.65 6.85

Current liabilities 11.55 5.34 12.51 3.29 1.92

Total liabilities 27.36 20.01 22.86 11.94 8.77

Shareholders’ fund 1,486.47 1,403.97 1,324.17 1,250.74 665.34

Capital Employed 1,502.28 1,418.64 1,334.52 1,259.39 672.19

pRoFITABIlITY AnD oTHeR FInAnCIAl RATIoS

Gross operating margin ratio (%) 72.28 71.89 73.55 73.02 73.34

Earnings before interest, depreciation and tax 104.25 105.12 91.01 83.00 52.83

Net profit margin (%) 70.56 73.65 67.34 71.83 61.48

Operating expense to operating revenue (%) 27.72 28.12 26.44 26.98 26.65

BuSIneSS RATIoS

Net interest income as % of working funds 9.77 10.03 9.96 9.84 15.50

Return on average assets (%) 7.04 7.56 6.96 8.55 8.22

Net asset value per share 97,473 93,026 87,509 82,016 133,068

Profit per employee 7.39 7.49 6.49 6.37 4.79

Operating profit as a % of working fund 7.27 7.43 7.49 9.17 13.86

eQuITY STATISTICS

Authorized capital 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 500

Paid up share capital 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 157.81

Number of shares 15,250 15,250 15,250 15,250 5,000

Shareholders’  equity 1,486.67 1,403.97 1,324.17 1,250.74 665.34

Five Years Financial Summary
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Trade &
Commerce

Power

SME
Finance

Housing

Agreeculture Industry

Sectorwise Investment

Graphical Data of Business Performance

Growth of total assets
The total assets of the company as on December 31, 2015 was 
Tk 1,513.83 million compared to Tk. 1,423.98 million register-
ing a growth of 6.31 percent. Despite slow investment envi-
ronment and comparatively lower interest rate UBICO could 
maintain its investment growth during 2015.

operating revenue
Company’s operating revenue for the year ended December 
31, 2015 was Tk 146.72 million as against Tk 142.28 million 
of 2014. Despite slow investment environment and compara-
tively lower interest rate UBICO could increase operating rev-
enue by 3.12 percent in 2015. 

operating profit

Company’s Operating Profit for the year ended December 
31, 2015 was Tk 106.05 million as against Tk 102.28 million 
of 2014. Despite slow investment environment UBICO could 
maintain a positive trend in operating profit in 2015.

Sector-wise Investment
The company has a diversified investment portfolio with the 
highest concentration to Small & Medium Entrepreneur Sec-
tor, Trade & Commerce and Agriculture Sector. 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

BDT in mio

Total Assets Growth

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

BDT in mio

Operating Income

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

BDT in mio

Pro�tability

Graphical presentation
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This financial review is provided for enabling our 
different stakeholders and readers to assess financial 
results of operation and financial position of the UAE-
Bangladesh Investment Company limited for the 
year ended December 31, 2015. This review should 
be read in conjunction with the audited financial 
statements for the year 2015.

Basis of financial review
The review has been made on the audited financial 
statements of the UAE-Bangladesh Investment 
Company limited for the year ended December 
31, 2015 which was prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standard as 
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Bangladesh and local laws & regulations. Appropriate 
accounting policies have consistently been applied 
in preparation of the financial statements and 
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and 
prudent judgment.

Financial overview
In spite of disruptive local political scenario along 
with volatile financial and capital market, we made 
a significant business growth during this year 2015. 
The recovery of loan and lease installment was 
98.84% during the year 2015. We regularized all 

of our classified loans. In addition, we successfully 
disbursed to our approved projects by which our 
investment portfolio increased.   Financial 
Performance:

Financial performance
The financial growth during the year 2015 significantly 
increased with an increment in net revenues by 3.12% 
over the year 2014.  At the end of the year 2015, total 
assets of the company also grew by 6.31% compared 
to the year 2014. 

The total expenses of the company were strictly 
controlled throughout the year and were in line with 
the budget. The operating expenditures increased 
only by 1.66% in 2015 compared to the year 2014. 

Despite slow investment environment and 
comparatively lower interest rate UBICO maintained 
a positive trend of operating profit in 2015.

Financial Indicators
-   Assets growth is 6.31% which is a significant 

achievement.
- Net Asset Value per share increased 5.87% in 

2015.

Financial Review
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Financial Highlights
Operating revenue increase for the last five years.  

The operating expenses  also increases year to year, 
but at slower rate compare to the revenue. 

During the last five year, UBICO has an incremental net 
profit trend. 

The assets and investments of the company have also 
a positive growth.

Financial Results in 2015

Percentage of increase (decrease) in 2015 over 2014

Revenue & expenditures 
Income from loan, leases and investments 40.10%

Income from treasury management  -6.63%

Other investment income -85.61%

Total Revenue 3.12%
 

Management Expenses 1.66%

Financial Expenses 0.00%

Provision for loans & Investment 203.13%

Total Expenses  15.40%

net profit -1.28%
 

Assets and Investments  

loans, leases and advances 33.21%

Investments (Equity) 31.40%

Fixed Assets net of depreciations 431.34%

Cash & Cash Equivalents -11.48%

other Assets 41.76%
Total Assets  6.31%
Net Assets  5.88%

 

Shareholder’ equity and liabilities  
Shareholder’ equity  5.88%

Other liabilities 36.76%

Total equity and liabilities 6.31%

Revenue
During the year 2015, the revenue from loan, lease 
and advance have increased by 40.10% compared to 
the previous year. In spite of drastic market fall, the 
income from treasury management decreased by 
6.63% in 2015 which indicates the lower dependency 
in treasury income. The net profit of the company 
decreased by 1.28% in 2015 over the previous year 
2014 mainly due to comparatively lower interest rate 
and slow investment. 
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loans & Investments
In the year 2015, the loan, leases and advances of 
the company increased by 33.21% compared to the 
previous year as new disbursement was made in 2015.
The loans and investment portfolio of UAE-Bangladesh 

Investment Company limited for the year ended 
December 31, 2015 was as below:

Fixed  Assets
During the year 2015, fixed assets of the company 
increased due to purchase of some new furniture, 
computer accessories and office equipments and a car. 

other Assets
The cash and cash equivalents including short term 
fund decreased by 11.48% in 2015 over the previous 
year due to disbursement of new term loan in 2015.

Shareholder’s equity and reserves
The shareholders equity and reserves of the company 
increased by 5.88% compared to year 2014 due to 
achievement of net profit in 2015. 

provision 
As per FID circular No. 08 dated 03-08-2002, the 
company made required provision for loans and 
investment during the year 2015. 

Dividend
Considering the overall performance of the company 
and in order to maintain a satisfactory capital base, 

the Board of Directors has recommended 20% cash 
dividend of net profit for the year 2015 which was also 
same as previous two years.

Audit opinion
In the opinion of our statutory auditor, the financial 
statements of the company give a true and fair view 
of the financial position for the year ended December 
31, 2015. 

Current liabilities 
The current liabilities, which include the outstanding 
telephone expenses, audit fee etc, will be settled in 
2016.

long Term liabilities 
The long term liabilities, which include the provision 
for gratuity fund for the employees of the company.

Capital Management
The framework of Capital Management has been 
designed prudently which ensures that UBICO 
maintains sufficient Capital consistent with its risk 
profile, all regulatory requirements. The Capital 
Management process is consistently reviewed by 
the Senior Management as well as by the Board and 
appropriate decisions is adopted from time to time 
to strengthen our capital base. In view of the above, 
UBICO retains a major portion of net profit in reserve 
and surplus. 

Budgeting
Budgeting is a strategy which acts as controlling tool 
for achieving desired future outcome under changing 
scenario. Budgetary achievements were reviewed 
on monthly basis and variances were scrutinized for 
finding necessary business directions.

Trade &
Commerce

Power

Others (SME
Finance)

Housing

Agreeculture
Garments & Knitwear

Textile

Paper, Printing & Packaging

Sectorwise Investment

11 12 13 14 15

Assets & Investment
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Section - C

SuSTAInABIlITY RepoRT
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Our main focus is to maintain sustainable investment activities. Shareholders of UBICO deploy its resources, i.e., 
equity capital to different viable projects through its various product / structure for specific outcome. Through our 
activities, we help the economy to expand its size and add value in macro perspective of the economy.

Resources
-  Equity

  
Sustainable return
-  Dividend
-  Reserve
-  Retained
    earnings

Process
-  loan
-  lease
-  Equity
-  Quasi

Value Creation
-  Project Promoters
-  Employees
-  Government

Our main focus is to maintain sustainable investment activities. Shareholders of UBICO deploy 
its resources, i.e., equity capital to different viable projects through its various product / structure 
for specific outcome. Through our activities, we help the economy to expand its size and add 
value in macro perspective of the economy.

value chain
Our shareholders provide equity fund for investment with viable projects. The project promoters 
use the fund to implement projects, generate jobs, create economic value and expand national 
economy. 
Sustainability of value chain
The success of our company depends on the macro aspect of the country. Sustainability depends 
on the total scenario of the country we operate, i.e., economic, political, social. Therefore for 
any company, sustainability depends on sustainable growth or return on equity. Sustainable 
return enables the company to fulfill its obligation to shareholders, employees, community. 
Therefore, our company takes appropriate steps to discharge its responsibilities towards the 
local community, environmental issues and relationship with other stakeholders. 

value Creation
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As per charter of our company, UBICO is committed for socio-economic development of Bangladesh. Therefore 
the core objective of the company is to create value for the society through its various activities. UBICO prefer to 
create social values in a transparent and ethical ways.

our CSR principles

•	 The company is dedicated to its vision and mission.

•	 Shall continue our endeavor in a fair and transparent manner.

•	 Shall pursue for high ethical standard.

•	 Extend full respect to human dignity.

•	 Remain compliant with local laws and regulations.

•	 Ensure a harmonious environment relationship for employees.

•	 Maintain proper reporting system.

our responsibilities for Investment activities

•	 Our company continuously looks for investment opportunities in viable projects of private sector.

•	 We always provide professional services to make the project and investment viable.

•	 We encourage open communication in our decision process.

•	 We insist on ethical and transparent practices in all activities.

Responsibilities to shareholders

•	 We try our best to maintain ideal corporate governance.

•	 We provide transparent financial information and reporting.

•	 We make best effort in maintaining sustainable return on investment.

Corporate Social Responsibilities



(Support for Shila’s Father 

Treatment)

(Handing over Blanket for 
Cold Affected Poor People)

(Support for Nursing
Training Institute)

CSR Activities
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In line with global development and response to the environmental degradation, the central bank of Bangladesh 
has introduced Green Banking Policy and sustainable practices for all the bank and financial institutions in 
Bangladesh.

The main purpose of Green Banking policy is to ensure necessary measures to protect environmental pollution 
while providing services of financing customers as well as to improve in house environment management through 
efficient use of various resources and to save our world for our better future through an integrated effect of all 
stakeholders and build awareness among the people.

As per green banking policy of Central Bank, UBICO board has adopted a 3 Phase Green Banking implementation 
plan as below: 

Phase I: Developing Green Banking Policy and show general commitments on environment through in house 
performance

Phase II: Developing and planning to sector identification strategic planning, setting in-house improvement 
work, awareness build program and report to Central Bank

Phase III: Designing eco friendly prudent and prepare Green Report for external verification 

By adopting the Green Banking Policy, UBICO will contribute with others to build a sustainable world in the 
following manners:

- Build up the image of UBICO among the stakeholders 

- Reduce operational cost due to less consumption of office stationeries, energy and water

- Improve productivity as well as efficiency of the employees through skilled and optimum use of technology.

- Able to reduce possible health hazards by installing eco-friendly equipments.

- Contribution to save the frostery by reducing paper usages

-  Emission of Green House Gases (GHG) may lessen through teleconferencing with stakeholders 

-  Build up customer consciousness on environment by arranging awareness development program. 

our Green Banking
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A value added statement (VAS) is a statement showing the net added value of a business firm during a certain 

period on its total transaction. The value added statement is an indicative tool that demonstrates the strength of a 

company in creating wealth during the period by utilizing its capacity, capital, manpower and other resources. For 

a financial institution value addition refers to the profit that is earned over the year as well as distribution of the 

added value refers to dividend to shareholder, payment to employee and government  and amount retained in 

the business as capital  and revenue reserve . A value added statement is regarded as a part of social responsibility 

accounting.

particulars 31 December 
2015

31 December 
2014

31 December 
2013

31 December 
2012

value Added 

Net Interest Income  144,972,892   130,150,395    129,536,662     106,274,290 

Other Income  1,745,268     12,131,665        3,331,613         9,036,940 

Provision 2,594,970 (2,516,097) 6,936,382 1,369,293 

Operating expenses excluding
salary & allowance and depreciation

15,884,196     16,667,650 15,382,702  15,322,603 

Total Value Added by the company 128,238,994 128,130,507 110,549,191 98,619,334 

Distribution of value addition

Employees as salary & allowances  23,991,617 23,012,292 19,531,176 15,634,091 

Government as tax -                   -                       -   17,601,503 

Shareholders as dividend  20,690,707      20,958,336      18,159,662        12,424,590 

Retained in the business as capital  
and revenue reserve  82,762,828  83,833,343  72,638,649 52,804,509 

Depreciation 793,842        326,537          219,704 154,641 

Total distribution of value addition 128,238,994   128,130,507     110,549,191       98,619,334 

value Added Statement
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national Growth
UBICO is contributing for 

national growth by increasing 
its investment activities, paying 
dividend, employee salary 
payment etc. During the year 

the company paid 20% 
cash dividend to its 

shareholders.

policy
Implementation

UBICO always plays a positive
role in implementing

various policies of 
the Government.

Contribution to national economy

As a financial institution, UBICO is contributing positvely for the national economy of Bangladesh

Donation & CSR
The Company is committed to 

the local society and participates 
within its budget for various social 
causes. During the year  we have 
contributed an amount of Tk. 

14.40 lacs.

Generation of
employment

Through our invested project, 
with the expansion of economic 
activities, various enterprises 
recruited more manpower to 

meet the growing activities.

national Budget
We contribute to the 

national budget through timely 
payment of VAT, AIT, Excise Duty, 
Supplementary Duty, Surcharge, 
Source Tax etc. During the year 

we have paid a sum of Tk. 
28.78 lacs. 

promoting 
enterprises/
Industry

The company is contributing 
its effort to increase its 

investment activities to promote 
SME, Women Entrepreneur, Green 
Banking Projects. As at 31st 
December 2014 our investment 

portfolio has a growth 
of 35.54% over the 

previous year.



34 Annual Report 2015
UAE-Bangladesh Investment Company Limited

Success Stories of uBICo’s 
Investment with Different MFIs

A success story LAN (Local Agriculture Network) 
Project Financing Program
Joynal (36) a fish feed trader, residing Alipur village, 
Nanggol court Upazila, Comilla; was the youngest son 
of his parents. Joynal completed his BSS degree and 
could not continue study because of family. In 2001, 
Joynal started fish feed trading in his village bazar. 
Besides the trade, he also looks after their crop lands. 
He build up a good reputation in the market. Resulted 
which, in 2005, he elected Secretary General of Bazar 
Samity (Market traders Union). The income from the 
trade and agriculture was not enough for his family. 
When the local Agricultural Network (lAN) project of 
a local NGO-MFI started in 2014; since then Mr. Joynal 
actively engaged with the activities. He signed an 
agreement to participate in lAN project for sustaining 
the agricultural business. With the encouragement of 
that NGO-MFI and its exchange visit to Feni district; 
Joynal became interested to start hatchery and 
pisciculture. Thus, in July 2014; Joynal started his new 
business with three ponds. He cultured different types 
of carp and cat fishers. Now he has 8 ponds with 12 
acres and earned almost Tk.3.5 million. He is now 
planning to expand his business and his family is now 
living a happy life. Joynal is grateful to that NGO-MFI 
and UBICO for showing him new paths. 

A Success Story of DISA Microfinance Program

I am NOYONTARA BEGUM a member of 
SatnalKarmozibiMohilaSamiti of a local MGO. My 
husband was a hawker and his earning wasn’t sufficient 
for our family. We have two sons and one daughter 
in our family. We were passing each day of our life in 
extremely poor situation where two times daily meals 
were not managed for our family members. Whatever, 
I also wish to help my husband to manage the daily 
expenditure by earning some additional income; I 
wasn’t getting any way for that. But, I was trying and 
trying.

Once a local NGO-MFI’s Credit Officer came to me 
and after hearing my story he suggested me to join 
the SatnalKarmozibiMohilaSamiti’s activities. I had 
accepted his advice and join the group on August 
2011. Initially I was involved with their savings & weekly 
subject-wise activities. According to his suggestion I 
applied for a loan for individual cow-rearing project. 
Under the joint Credit  program of UBICO & the NGO, 
I took loan of Tk.25,000 from that NGO and bought 
a cow. I myself along with my other family members 
start to rear it with highest attention. After few months 

Investment perspective

Joynal become a successful
fish farmer

It`s My Story:noyontara
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that’s become a milky cow & started to give 3-5 litters 
milk per day we inspired and started more carefully to 
rear the calf too. Shortly, we got two milky cow and 7-8 
litters’ milk per day and earn taka 300-350 per day what 
was helping us to get out from the poor family status. 
Beside this earnings it’s fulfils our family nutrition too.

Meanwhile, with the help of that NGO I participated 
3-4 livestock farming and culturing training programs. 
After completion the training I start to think to expand 
my cow rearing project with the financial assistance of 
UBICO, the NGO and my own savings. At present we 
have six cows & getting 18-20 litters milk & earning Tk. 
900-1000 per day.

Now I’m self-depended. I can contribute economically 
to my family and the society. My daughter gets married 
and my two sons are in study. We have purchased 15 
decimal lands. My house and its surrounding is a truce 
picture of an ideal village home. We aren’t facing any 
difficulties to manage our regular expenditures. Now-
a-days I am participating in community level forums 
and put my opinion. 

A Success Story of DISA Microfinance Program

PARVIN BEGUM, a woman with three children lost her 
husband at the age of 28 years. She started her widow 
life as home servant. No one of the community asked 
her how she led life with three children or assists her. 
But Parvin had not lost the courage. She became 
member of DISA ZafarabaKarmajibiMahilaSamity for 
fighting against poverty. At the very beginning, Parvin 
took only 12,000 taka as loan from a local NGO, who 
is the investment partner of UBICO, to buy a sewing 

machine and started to make net bags. Her elder son 
assists her to make net bags and sell begs at bazar. The 
business of Parvin became bigger; she took another 
15,000 taka loan and invests in her net bag business. 
The demand of her goods was increasing and their 
small industry became busy. They recruit 18 labours 
in their industry. Parvin is now earning 40,000 taka 
per month. The poverty at last loses to the courage 
of Parvin. She now became idol for all women in her 
society. 

A Success Story of DISA Microfinance Program
For leading a happy life in a family like other Bengali 
female; AMINA BEGUM also came to her husband’s 
house. But the tail of poverty blocked all their 
happiness. Her husband was day labor; who worked 
in others land and lives from hand to mouth. Amina 
feels to help her husband and got admitted to 
HarongKrishiMahilaSamity of a local NGO. She started 
savings and started their vegetable gardening with the 
loan of taka 20,000 from that NGO under microfinance 
program. They grew potatoes and tomatoes in their 
leased land. Selling the vegetables, they repaid the 
loan and again took 30,000 taka for the same purpose 
in larger scale. Soon, they step towards their success 
and earned livelihoods from the business. 

The green vegetables not only brings the money also 
brings the happiness on Amina’s face. She is now 
thinking to rear milking cow, cultivate fishes in pond 
and starting other business for securing their children’s 
future. Poverty is not a problem for Amina now; she 
left all the obstacles in her life. 

parvin created employment 
opportunities for others

The Green vegetable brings  Smile  
on  Amina`s Face
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Organization’s Name   owner
laily Yarn Twisting Mill Ms. laily Khatun

  Organization’s Name owner
   Western Vegetables Production Ms. Mily Khatun

Business Address

Spouse:-Md. Akul Shekh, Vill: Sayadhanagra, 
Post: Sirajgonj, Dist + P. S. : Sirajgonj.

Nature of Business: Yarn twisting
Number of Employees: 15 persons
Present value of Business: $ 33,000
Amount of loan: $ 1,282

Husband of Ms. laily Khatun was a poor rickshaw 
driver. It was really very difficult to arrange two meals 
a day from the earning of rickshaw driving. Therefore, 
Ms. laily was compelled to take a job of yarn twisting. 
By observing the potentialities of profitability through 
yarn twisting she was looking for opportunities to 
set up a small yarn twisting business. She got the 
opportunity from the funding of UBICO through TMSS 
by taking a loan of $1,500 under women entrepreneur 
development program. Now she owns 7 machines and 
her monthly income is $1700. She has also created job 
for 15 employees who are mostly helpless women. 
Now she does not have any financial crisis and out of 
poverty curves. This is the example of others how to 
develop family and society.

Business Address
Spouse: Md. Yusuf Ali, Vill: Bujruk Shokra, 
Post: Daridha, P.S.: Shibgonj, District: Bogra.

Nature of Business: Agriculture Firm

Number of Employees:   12 persons

Present value of Business: $ 52,000

Amount of loan: $ 3,846

Husband of Ms. Mily Khatun was an agriculture worker. 
They were passing their life below poverty level. But Ms. 
Mily was very dynamic and looking for opportunities 
how to improve their financial condition. She started 
producing vegetables by taking a loan of $130 form 
TMSS. later on she took another loan of $450 from 
UBICO through TMSS. She is cultivating different types 
of vegetables in a lease land size of 6 acre. Her business 
is grown significantly. She is supplying expensive 

vegetables like as Amperages, Broccoli, Actabiz, latus, 
capsicum, Cherry tomato, Thai ginger, etc. to different 
Chinese restaurants of Dhaka, Chittagong, Bogra and 
other cities of Bangladesh. Now she is planning to 
expand her business by taking more land under lease 
and exporting overseas countries.

Story of Successful SMe entrepreneurs
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Section - D

HuMAn
ReSouRCeS
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overview

Our human resources management are the heart of 
our all activities. From the strategy as directed by the 
Board leadership, our people are responsible to deliver 
the plan and making UBICO a successful institution 
to achieve its vision. As we continue to transform our 
company vis-à-vis activities, we have worked hard to 
assure that we have the capabilities in place to drive the 
company forward. We have ensure that our employees 
are confident, engaged and knowledgeable. We 
continue to train our employees with appropriate 
training including digital development. 

positive Team

It is very important that all our employees understand 
our priority and objectives of socio-economic 
development of Bangladesh and that they are 
engaged accordingly. This understanding helps us to 
maintain our ethics and confidence which in turn leads 
to success of our activities.

Building capabilities

As technology continues to change rapidly, we are 
gradually building our capabilities to ensure continuity 
of mission of our company. We provide regular training 
as required by the role of each employee. During 
the year 2014, we have allowed 32 training to our 
employees. 

employee engagement

Despite a challenging engagement, we continuously 
engage our employees through our various formal 
and informal communications to ensure that our 
employees update themselves in carrying forward the 
objectives of the company.

our Focus

UBICO encourage a harmonious relationship among its 
employees. We adopt necessary measures to develop 

and train our employees based on long term goal and 
mutual necessity. We are very alert to avoid any kind of 
discrimination based on religion, gender or caste.

Compensation and Rewards

Our company follows the market base compensation 
policy for all its employees and rewards the deserving 
employees accordingly.

Job satisfaction

Our company ensures a congenial working 
environment for which we have zero employee 
turnover. Moreover our employees are allowed to 
express constructive feedback/opinion for welfare of 
the company and individuals.

Communication

Our company encourages both formal and informal 
communication with substance. The company also 
welcome any positive suggestion/comment for greater 
benefit of all concern.

people strategy

•	 Create	 a	 positive	 management	 team	 to	 achieve	
vision of the company

•	 Develop	backup	skill	for	each	employee

•	 Maintain	transparency	and	fair	dealing

•	 Ensure	equal	opportunity

•	 Extend	 training	 and	 development	 program	 to	
employees

•	 Maintain	a	harmonious	working	environment

Human Resources Report
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employee welfare activities

Our company extends welfare activities to the employee as below:

•	 Housing	 As	per	human	resource	policy,	we	provide	house	building	financial	facilities	
to all employees having a minimum 10 years satisfactory service with the 
company.

•	 Transport	 Our	 company	 provides	 Car	 facilities	 as	 required	 by	 the	 agreement/
assignment. Provide car loan to mid and senior level officials.

•	 Provident	fund	 Extend	provident	fund	facilities	to	all	employees	@	10%	of	basic	equivalent	
to employees contribution.

•	 Gratuity	 Provides	gratuity	scheme	for	all	employees	as	per	HR	policy.

•	 Medical	expenses	 Provides	Medical	facilities	as	per	Human	Resources	Policy.

•	 Maternity	benefits	 Female	employees	are	entitled	for	the	facilities	as	per	policy	of	the	company.

•	 Training	&	Development	 Our	company	extends	necessary	trainings	to	the	employees	as	required	by	
their role.

•	 Annual	events	 We	allow	our	employees	to	hold	annual	dinner	and	other	yearly	events	as	
necessary.

•	 Food	 Our	company	provides	light	refreshment	to	all	employees	as	necessary.

•	 Assistance	to	family	members	 Our	 company	 provides	 special	 assistance	 to	 the	 family	 members	 of	
employees as necessary.

•	 Insurance	 Our	company	provides	insurance	facilities	for	all	the	employees.

Group Session with the Board Members
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Developing Skill Through Training

Our employees have joint from diversified background. In order to attain our mission and vision, we have a policy 
of training and developing professional skill of our employees. In the year 2015, our employees have attended 43 
separate training session on the following topic organized by various organizations:

- The Role of the Policy Markers and Central Banks in Promoting SME’s Access to Finance-The case of Bangladesh

- Anti Money laundering and Combating Terrorist Finance

- VAT & Income Tax

- Credit Operations in Banks & NBFIs from Sanction To Management of Risks & Recovery

- The Role of the Policy Markers and Central Banks in Promoting SME’s Access to Finance-The case of Bangladesh

- Investment in Energy Efficient Brick Manufacturing Projects

- Green Banking & Environmental Risk Management

- The Art of SME Finance and Risk Management

- Best Practices Indicators/Benchmarks for SME Financing Development

- Women Entrepreneur Development

ensuring harmonious  Working environment

For a better output, UBICO practice to ensure a healthy working environment for its employees. Healthy working 
environment include maintaining a harmonious relationship amongst employees, adjusting individual work 
priorities, keeping in balance with personal crisis, providing sustainable safety measures like – group insurance 
policies, family members medical support, vaccination program, educational leave, families holidays etc. UBICO 
truly believes that employees are the driving force to achieve its mission and vision and accords done priorities 
accordingly.

Safety Training

To ensure safety to the working place, we have provided firefighting training by competent authorities to all our 
staff members.



Responsibilities towards Employees

Though establishment through a bilateral agreement 
between the two governments, UBICO maintains a 
“Equal opportunity employer” policy. Our company 
is committed to maintain a harmonious working 
environment for employees. We have no discrimination 
in dealing with our employees based on religion, cast 
or color. Our company believes is sustainable growth 
based on professional quality. All our policy guidelines 
are properly structured through our corporate 
governance policy as duly approved by the board. 

•		 Our company deals with employees with due 
respect and encourage a family spirit to maintain.

•		 Our company extends / allows our employees 
to attend professional trainings / seminars as 
and when available. In 2015 our employees have 
attended over 42 trainings / seminars.

•		 Our employees attend all annual events of the 
company.

•		 The Board members also meet employees on 
regular interval and exchange ideas.

Celebrating Employee Birthday

Participating in SME Fair

employees Report
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Celebrating ISO Award with 
the Employees

Board Members are exchanging views with 

member of staff 

Welcoming the New Director
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Group Photo with Board Members

Integrity Strategy Workshop Session

Moment of Inter-exchange 
with Board Members
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Board of Directors

Audit Committee

Dr. S.M. Akbar
Managing Director

Aminul Haque 
Head of Investment

Md. Ataur Rahman
 Head of General Services

Ms. Kourshia Fardushi
Junior O�cer

Md. Aminul Islam
Deputy Head –

Finance & Accounts

Faisal Rashid
Deputy Manager

Investment

Engr. Sushanta Saha
Head of ICT

Daulat Hossain
Driver

Md. Jahangir Alam
Driver

K M Nuruddin Noman
Peon

Md. Ra�qul Islam
Peon

Zafar Ahmed
Peon

Arfanul Haque
Senior O�cer – Finance &

Accounts 

Md. Faruk Hossain
Head –

Finance & Accounts

organizational Structure

organogram



Dr. S. M. Akbar
Managing Director

Md. Faruk Hossain
Head of Finance & Admin

Md. Ataur Rahman
Head of General Services

Aminul Haque
Head of Investment

engr. Sushanta Saha
Head of ICT

Kourshia Fardushi
Junior Officer

Arfanul Haque
Senior Officer (F & A)

Md. Aminul Islam
Deputy Head (F&A)

our Team
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Section - e

MAnAGeMenT
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Risk management is a matter of regular concern 
for any financial institution. Importance of risk 
management cannot be undermine at any level and 
at any time. Installing a proper risk management 
system can ensure a positive outcome of any 
organization. Risk Management system presents a 
transparent and systematic approach to identify and 
tackle any risk that comes up in the regular business/
investment activities.

RISK MAnAGeMenT STRATeGY
In UBICO, risk factors are managed under guidelines, 
policy and instructions as approved by the Board of 
Directors. Our risk management objectives are (a) to 
follow a conservative approach in identifying the risk, 

(b) to strengthen the system through proper guideline 
as per Central bank and other regulatory authorities, 
(c) to ensure/develop proper infrastructure (d) 
to pursue liable investment opportunities (e) to 
safeguard resource/assets of the organization.

RISK MAnAGeMenT STRuCTuRe
UBICO maintain its risk management structure under 
the direct leadership of its Board of Directors. The 
Board approves amends or charges its policies and 
strategy of risk management. Management follows 
the guideline and instructions to implement the 
same. All management committees are responsible 
for practicing risk management policies and 
guideline.

Risk Management Report
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ReGulAToRY AnD CoMplIAnCe MAnAGeMenT 

Our management team is full alert to maintain all 
required regulatory and compliance issues. We 
also maintain close relationship with all regulatory 
bodies and follow-up necessary rules, regulations 
and guidelines as issued by various authorities. We 
have a transparent Internal Control and Compliance 
Framework (ICCF) policy and guidelines duly 
approved by the board. Our management team and 
respective department take necessary measures to 
implement the same.
REPUTATIONAl RISK
Being a joint venture financial institution, our 
board and management maintain high alert to 
preserve the reputation of the company vis-à-vis its 
shareholders. Our company prudently avoids any 

kind of controversies and prioritises our activities to 
fulfill Vision and Mission of the company.

peRSonnel RISK
Our board encourages due measures that appreciates 
employees for their dedication and contribution for 
the company. Our company adopted due policies 
to provide necessary trainings for our employees 
to promote their skills. Time to time our board also 
request for advises from HR consultants to upgrade 
or improve various benefits/remuneration packages 
for our employees to maintain uniformity of the 
industry practice.      

RISK FACToRS

CReDIT RISK

 

Risk Factors 

Credit
Risk  Reputation

Risk  

Human 
Resources

Risk  

Liquidity
& Market

Risk  

IT Risk  Operational
Risk

Regulation &
Compliance

Risk

Audit 
Committee

Asset/Liability
Committee 

Risk
Management

Forum  

Management
Committee

Internal
Control &

Compliance 

Managing 
Director

ICT Committee

Board of 
Directors

Figure 1 : Risk Management Structure
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As approved by the Board and in line with the 

Central Bank guideline, our company is always alert 

in managing our credit risk exposure. We mainly 

focus on our vision to participate in socio-economic 

development of the country. Within our limitation 

collaborating with other institutions, NGOs and 

counterpart jointly and severally we invest with 

various ventures/scheme/projects. We continuously 

monitor and implement appropriate due diligence 

process. In this regard we maintain a transparent 

and well defined policy and procedures to follow. 

Investment/credit proposals are prepared in line 

with the guideline and presented to the board for 

necessary decision/approval. Board holds absolute 

authority over any decision. However, Board 

periodically reviews and approves any amendment 

of related policies. Management team carryout 

day to day monitoring, following and reporting 

functions. We have a proper credit/investment 

evaluation process as below:

Meeting with the  client

Credit O�cer –Investment Department

Submission of complete documentation by the client

Credit O�cer –Investment Department

Obtaining for legal opinion

Legal Department

Credit Analysis

Credit Risk Management Unit (CRMU)

Figure 2.  Submission and processing of the loan application 

Visiting the client –drawing up the Visit Report
based on a visit  to the client

Credit Team

START

1

2

3

4

5

A



51Annual Report 2015
UAE-Bangladesh Investment Company Limited

Submission of information required for preparation of
the credit decision proposal

Credit O	cer-Investment Department

Checking the information necessary for preparation of 
the credit decision proposal

Credit O	cer-Investment Department

Modi�cation of the information necessary for preparation of 
the credit decision proposal

Credit O	cer-Investment Department

Presenting the credit decision proposal to the competent board
Credit O	cer-Investment Department

Making decision

Board of Directors

Is the analysis of the
loan application
adequate?

          Approval to the credit decision proposal

Credit Risk Management Unit (CRMU)

A

6

7

8

9

10

11

No Yes

No Yes

Is approved?

B

Figure 3.  Loan Application Analysis & Approval
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Preparation of the agreement and 
related documentation

Credit O�cer-Investment Department

Legal Department presents a modi�ed Loan
Agreement and other prepared documentation

Legal Adviser

Signing and veri�cation of the Agreement and required
documentation /  a copy of the Agreement is presented to the client

Client

Is the submitted
documentation
complete?

    Back O�ce checks the documentation 

Credit Administration 

Request for Disbursement

Client

B

12

13

14

Preparation of Disbursement memo and approval of competent
authority for issuance of cheque

 Investment and Treasury Department

17

          Hand over the cheque 

Client

18

15

16

No Yes

Recovery
&

Monitoring

Figure 4: Documentation and Disbursement
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our Risk Management environment

The Bangladesh Bank, (Central Bank of Bangladesh) supervises and monitors risk activities of all financial 
institutions in Bangladesh. Central Bank issues guidelines/directives from time to time in this regard. Under Central 
Bank guideline to core risk management areas/activities, we have set up the following units to address related risk: 

-  Internal Control & Compliance (ICC)

- Assets  liability Management (AlM)

- Information Communication Technology (ICT)

- Anti Money laundering (AMl)

As per guideline, UBICO regularly provide a report under “Risk Management Forum” to the Central Bank which 
cover the following areas: 

- Number of investment proposal under due diligence process

- Status of Credit Portfolio 

- Status of Existing Client 

- Recovery Action Plan

- Treasury Management

- ICT Management

- Business/Investment Policy

- Market Risk

- Stress Testing

A brief overview of our Risk Management Paper (RMP) is presented below:-

- Portfolio Trend- Steady

- Sector wise Investment- Diversify

- NPl – NIl

- liquidity Risk – Satisfactory 

- Statutory Reserve- Satisfactory

- CRR – Satisfactory

- Operational Risk – Satisfactory

- Reputational Risk- Satisfactory

- Capital Management Function -  Satisfactory

- Stress Testing Report – Satisfactory         

Under Stress Testing report, Central Bank monitors the following areas :
- Interest Risk
- Credit Risk : NPl movement Investment trend, concentration of loans.
- Equity Risk/Market Risk
- liquidity Risk-Fund Management Trend (short/long term)

So far UBICO maintained a Green Zone Category which is a prudent risk management trend.

UBICO monitors different risk factor under Central Bank guideline as below: 

Balance Sheet Risk

Balance sheet risk can be categorized into two major types of significant risks- liquidity risk and interest rate risk. 
Changes in market liquidity and/or interest rates expose FIs/ business to the risk of loss, which may, in extreme 
cases, threaten the survival of institution.
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liquidity Risk

The risk that FI or business will be unable to meet it’s commitment as they fall due leading to bankruptcy or rise in 
funding cost. FIs traditionally use the statutory liquidity reserve and their borrowing capacity in the volatile inter-FI 
money market as the source of liquidity.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the exposure of a FI’s financial condition to adverse movements in interest rates. Accepting this 
risk is a normal part of financial activities and can be an important source of profitability and shareholder value. 
However, excessive interest rate risk can pose a significant threat to a FI’s earnings and capital base. Changes in 
interest rates affect a FI’s earnings by changing its net interest income and the level of other interest-sensitive 
income and operating expenses. Changes in interest rates also affect the underlying value of the FI’s assets, 
liabilities and off-balance sheet instruments because the present value of future cash flows (and in some cases, 
the cash flows themselves) change when interest rates change. Accordingly, an effective risk management process 
that maintains interest rate risk within prudent levels is essential to the safety and soundness of FIs.

Capital Adequacy

The need to adopt the best international practices given in the pretext of globalization of economies and businesses 
is a must as you are aware of “Basel Committee on Banking Supervision” and the emphasis on maintaining the 
Capital Adequacy commensurate to exposure or risk on balance sheet. The new “Basel Capital Accord” stipulates 
that “FIs must hold capital commensurate with the level of interest rate risk they undertake”.

Composition of Credit Risk

1)  Relationship Management/Marketing 
2)  Credit Risk Management-CRM
3)  Credit Administration
4)   Internal Audit/Control

ICT Risk

ICT risk arises from incidents like a minor interruptions of service, (i.e. network is down for 10 minutes) or even 
from a major disaster like losing a IT infrastructure (i.e. collapse of a server). 

Compliance Risk 

Compliance risk is defined as the risk of legal sanctions, material financial loss, or loss to reputation the Bank may 
suffer as a result of its failure to comply with laws, its own regulations, code of conduct, and standards of best/
good practice.
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Beyond regulatory obligation, this report 
indicatesabout the pro-active investment decision 
by theboard of the company. The Board of Directors 
of UBICO has full confidence on the internal 
allocationof its resources for any viable projects 
in the privatesector of Bangladesh. The vision of 
the companyis to participate in socio-economic 
developmentof Bangladesh. The Board of Directors 
has made itsassessment about the availability of its 
resources andexpressed its positive desire to continue 
its activities within its agreed internal structure. The 
Board is alsowilling to review its future strategy to take 
forward itsmission in a pro-active manner. The Board 
is pleased to present the following factors which 
may be identified as satisfactory indicatorsabout 
continuity of its investment activities.

FInAnCIAl FACToRS

Deploying its own capital

As per charter signed between the two Governments, 
UBICO uses its own capital to invest in Bangladesh. 
UBICO does not borrow any fund or takes any private 
deposit in Bangladesh. As a result, the company has 
only a very negligible 1.80 percent liability. 

Financial Support from Sponsors 

The company has full assurance from its shareholders 
to provide necessary funding as per Charter 
Agreement. 

Reinvesting its profit

Our company has invested 80% of its profit achieved 
into the activities of the company.

operating Cash Flow

Statement of liquidity and cash flow statement show 
no liquidity gap demonstrating its strong ability to 
meet any future urgency.

positive Financial Ratios

UBICO maintains positive financial ratios which 
represent its strong support from its shareholders.

payment of Dividends

UBICO has been paying its dividend regularly. For last 
few years the company paid 20% of dividend for each 
year.

performance Growth

The investment of the company has growth by 
33.86% over the previous year.

opeRATInG FACToRS

Investment Activities

UBICO has diversified product portfolio as per 
guideline of the Central Bank. The Board has accorded 
its approval of various investment proposals by 
33.86% growth over the previous year.

Harmonious Culture

UBICO maintains a good working environment 
encouraging continuous professional development 
and ideal working relationship of its employees. The 
company facilitates professional excellence for its 
corporate environment.

oTHeR FACToRS

Satisfactory Capital

As per Central Bank requirement, the company is 
maintaining satisfactory capital provision.

CAMelS Rating

CAMElS rating is a tool used by the Central Bank for 
evaluating the health of Financial Institution. So far 
UBICO has received no adverse material observation.

Stress Testing

Central Bank has formulated a stress testing 
framework for Financial Institutions to ascertain its 
riskbearing capacity. As on 31st December 2015 
UBICO scored excellent result.

Investment Continuity Report
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Section - F

GoveRnAnCe pRACTICe
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SHAREHOLDERS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

EXTERNAL AUDITORAUDIT COMMITTEE

MANAGING DIRECTOR

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

ASSTE/ LIABILITY
COMMITTEE

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

INTERNAL CONTROL
& COMPLIANCE UNIT

ICT COMMITTEE RISK MANAGEMENT FORUM CENTRAL COMPLIANCE UNIT

GREEN BANKING UNIT

INTERNAL AUDITOR

INTEGRITY COMMITTEE

CoRpoRATe GoveRnAnCe FunDAMenTAlS
Being a joint venture company between two 
governments, UBICO emphasis to maintain 
its Corporate Governance practice based on 
transparency, integrity and complaint to the local laws 
and regulations.

SHAReHolDeRS
Abu Dhabi Fund for Development (ADFD) an 
integral part of the UAE Government holds 60% 
share and Government of Bangladesh hold 40% 
share of the company. The shareholder nominated 
their representative based on proportion of shares. 

At present out of total five Directors seat, ADFD 
has nominated 3 and Bangladesh Government has 
nominated 2 director to the board.

CoRpoRATe STRuCRuRe
Success of a corporate body depends on a well 
coordinated leadership of the board and its governance 
practices. UBICO operate under a specific governance 
pattern as per diagram as stated below:

BoARD MeeTInG
The company as required by law holds 4 board meeting 
in a calendar year.

Governance Report
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AnnuAl GeneRAl MeeTInG
The 27th Annual General Meeting of the company 
was held on March 30, 2016 at Westin Hotel, Dhaka. 
The AGM of the Company were unanimously 
resolved:
a) Adopted of audited Financial Statements of the 

company for the year ended 31st December 2015 
and also receives and considers the Auditors’ and 
directors report.

b) Declared 20% cash dividend.

c) Appointed auditor for 2016 and fix their 
remuneration.

WeBSITe
The company provides its basic information through 
its website which is regularly updated.

AnnuAl RepoRT
The company provides its Audited Financial 
Statements, Directors Report, Notice of AGM and 
other important information to circulate among its 
various stakeholders.

BoARD CoMpoSITIon
At present UBICO board is composed with the following:

1. Mr. Faisal Al Suwaidi, Chairman, Nominated by UAE Govt.

2. Dr. M Aslam Alam, Deputy Chairman, Nominated by Bangladesh Govt.

3. Ms. Alia Saeed Ghobash Director, Nominated by UAE Govt.

4. Mr. Mohammed Farooque Shaikh, Director, Nominated by UAE Govt.

5. Mrs. Mushfeka Ikfat, Director, Nominated by Bangladesh Govt.
 
AuDIT CoMMITTee
As per guideline of the Central bank, the role of 
Audit Committee is very important to maintain 
sustainability of Corporate Governance.
The Audit Committee performs a very important 
role as below:
•	 Maintaining	the	integrity	of	company’s	Financial	

Statements.
•	 Monitoring	 compliance	 obligation	 of	 the	

company.
•	 To	 engage	 external	 auditor	 as	 per	 central	 bank	

guideline.
•	 Ensuring	 reporting	 of	 Financial	 Statements	 to	

the shareholders.
•	 Monitoring	 proper	 accounting	 policies,	

Implementation of internal control and risk 
management system.

•	 	 Monitoring	 internal	 and	 external	 audit	 report	
and follow up of compliance program.

The Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the 
Board and reports directly to the board. Our Audit 
Committee is comprises the following member of 
the board representing from the shareholders:

-     Mr. Rashed Mohammed Al Kouk Chairman
-     Mrs. Mushfeka Ikfat,  Member

Being part of the board, the Audit Committee 
attends the regular board meeting to review the 
audit findings.

AuDIT pRoGRAM
Under normal provision, the following audit program 
takes place on yearly basis:

1) External audit by Statutory Auditor

2) Central Bank Comprehensive Audit

3) Central Bank Core Risk Management (CRM) 

Audit

4) ADFD Audit

The actual audit and its follow up activities continue 
round the year.

DIvIDenD DISBuRSeMenT
Dividend as recommended by the Board and 
approved in the Annual General Meeting are 
disbursed directly to the shareholder as per advice.

DISCloSuRe DuTIeS
The Financial Statements are communicated to the 
respective regulators and publish the same in two 
different daily (in English and Bengali) national 
newspapers. Audited Financial Statements, Directors 
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Report, AGM notice are distributed to the respective 
shareholders.

ReGulAR RepoRTInG

In UBICO we provide regular reporting of status. 
Report to the ADFD on our total activities. We also 
provide various information and report as and when 
required by ADFD. Besides we report to other local 
regulators and stakeholders as below:

1. Central Bank: Monthly Report, Quarterly Report, 
Half Yearly Report, Yearly Report and any other 
report as and when required.

2. Ministry of Finance: Any report as and when 
required.

3. Tax Authorities: Monthly Report, 
Quarterly Report, Yearly Tax 
Return and any other report as 
and when required.

SeleCTIon oF DIReCToRS

The shareholders nominates their 
suitable officials represent their in 
the board.

DIReCToRS ReMuneRATIon

As per central Bank regulation, 
the Board member are entitled to 
received a maximum of Tk. 5,000/= 
per meeting.

MAnAGeMenT

As authorized by the Board, the 
management team headed by the 
Managing Director is responsible 
for day to day management of the 
company.

MAnAGeMenT CoMMITTee
As per Central Bank guideline, 
several committees have been 
formed to conduct and monitor 
affairs of the company, to report 
to the board and other regulatory 
bodies as bellow:

- Risk Management Forum
- Asset / liability Committee
- ICT Committee
- Internal Control and Compliance Unit
- Central Compliance Unit
- Corporate Governance Committee
- Integrity / Ethical Compliance Committee

Each Committee have their separate role and 
responsibilities.

Board Meeting in Progress

Board Meeting in Progress
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RISK MAnAGeMenT
As per Central Bank guideline, we gave adopted the 
following risk management policies:

- Credit Risk Policy

- Anti Money laundering & 

Terrorist Financing Policy

- ICT Risk Policy

- Asset-liability Management 

Policy

- Internal Control and Compliance 

Policy

As per policy guideline, we have 
set up separate committee for each 
area, who periodically meet and 
review the risk and plan to mitigate 
the same.

InTeRnAl ConTRol

As per Central Bank guideline, UBICO 
has set up a comprehensive internal control system. 
The main objectives of the system are to manage the 
existing risk, evaluate and report to the board and 
concerned regulatory authorities. Main controlling 
mechanisms are:

- Regular Board meeting with specific agendas 
and reporting

- Regular Management 
Committee and sub-committee 
meeting with specific agendas 
and action plan

- Established corporate structure 
with specific responsibility

- Specific guideline for all area of 
activities

- Annual budgetary system with 
monthly reporting

- Operation Manual for all 
activities

- Treasury Management and cash 
flow reporting

- Proper Human Resource Policy
- Extensive reporting system

STATuToRY AuDIToR
The shareholders as recommended by the Board 

of Directors approve appointment of statutory 
auditor and fix their remuneration. As per Central 
Bank regulation, we have forward the proposal 
of nominated auditor to the Central Bank for final 
approval. As per regulatory provision, no external 
auditor can be appointed for more than three 
consecutive years.

Board Meeting in Progress

Celebrating ISO Certificate 
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In our 27th Annual General Meeting held on January 
28, 2015 M/S Aziz Halim Khair & Co. Chartered 
Accountants appointed as the statutory auditor of 
the company for the year 2015 and we have obtained 
central bank final approval accordingly.

ACCounTInG pRACTICeS
UBICO follows the Companies Act 1994, Bangladesh 
Accounting Standard as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB).

BuDGeT
We have long practice to propose 
and adopt yearly budget duly 
approved by the Board. The budget 
is regularly monitored and reviewed.

AnTI MoneY lAunDeRInG
UBICO is fully compliant with 
the rules and regulation of anti 
money laundering and combating 
financing of terrorism (AMl/CFT) 
practices as required. Our company 
does not accept any local funding, 
deposit from private individuals or 
borrow any fund. We have no risk in 
this area.

HuMAn ReSouRCeS 
MAnAGeMenT & 
CoMpAnSATIon
UBICO accord importance in 
managing its human resources. 
Time to time, the company 
employs external human resources 
consultant to review its HR practices 
and compensation packages. The 
company prefers to compensate 
performing employees in a fair 
manner. The company also prefers 

to maintain a non-discriminatory HR 
policy irrespective of religion, cast or 
gender.

WoRK envIRonMenT
The company provides suitable office equipments 
and working conditions for its employees. UBICO also 
continues creating awareness amongst its employees 
for energy saving effort, less use of powers and clean 
environment.

ISO Audit Session

ISO Certificate being presented to the Chairman



Dividend Handover Ceremony with 
Ministry of Fianance of Government 
of Bangladesh

Presenting Bouquet to Honorable 
Finance Minister of Bangladesh

Welcoming the New 
Deputy Chairman of UBICO 
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Handing over of dividend payment 
to Honorable Finance Minister of 
Bangladesh)

Collecting ISO Certificate from BSTI

Honorable Finance Minister of 
Bangladesh in pleasant moment 

about bilateral relationship
with UAE
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The Shareholders of UBICO nominates its officials to represent in the Board of the company. The Board provides 
leadership in policy formation, monitor development of the company and guide the management for long term 
sustainability of the company.

At present UBICO board comprises of five members (three represents ADFD and two from the Government of 
Bangladesh) based on proportion of Shareholdings.

1. Mr. Faisal Al Suwaidi, Chairman, Nominated by ADFD

2. Dr. M Aslam Alam, Deputy Chairman, Nominated by Bangladesh Govt.

3. Mrs. Mushfeka Ikfat, Director, Do

4. Mr. Mohammed Farooque Shaikh, Director, Nominated by ADFD

5. Mrs. Saeed Alia Gobash, Director, Do

Chairman of the Board

Mr. Faisal Al Suwaidi has been nominated by the Abu Dhabi Fund for Development as the Chairman of the Board. 
The Chairman is main liaison between the board, management and responsible for functioning of the board.

Tenure of the Board member

The shareholder decides about the retirement and replacement of Board members.

Directors Remuneration

As per Central Bank regulation, Directors are entitled for Tk. 8,000/= as fees for attending each meeting.

Board Committee

As per Central Bank regulation, the board has formed the Audit Committee to perform designated role with the 
following members:

Mr. Mohammed Farooque Shaikh –   Chairman

Mrs. Mushfeka Ikfat –   Member

Directors Responsibility

The Shareholders nominate the Directors to run the affairs of the company. The Directors are accountable to the 
Shareholders. In the Annual General Meeting, Directors present a report on the performance of the company 
for the Shareholders. Directors are responsible for developing and monitoring Governance Polices, Investment 
Policies, HR Policy etc. 

Board Structure
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purpose

The Audit Committee makes recommendations on 
the reporting, control and compliance aspects of 
the directors’ and the Company’s responsibilities, 
providing independent monitoring, guidance and 
challenge to executive management in these areas. 
Its aim to ensure that high standards of corporate 
reporting, control and compliance are achieved, in 
the belief that excellence in these areas enhances the 
effectiveness, and reduces the risk of the business.

Composition of the Committee:

During the year 2015, the Audit Committee comprised 
of the following Directors of the Board: 
1. Mr. Mohammed Farooque Shaikh
 Director of the company representing Chairman
 Abu Dhabi Fund For Development 
 
2. Mrs. Mushfeka Ikfat
 Director of the company representing 
 the Government of the People’s  Member
 Republic of Bangladesh 
  

All the members of the Audit Committee are non-
executive Directors. The Committee is responsible 
and reports to the Board of Directors. The Managing 
Director and the Company Secretary attended the 
committee meeting by invitation. 

Summary of Terms of reference:

The responsibility of the audit committee will be as 
follows:

i To oversee and recommend to establish an 
effective internal control system

ii To ensure the Corporate Governance of the 
Company

iii To submit annual report to the Board

Activities

The Committee focused on the following activities 
during the year:

- Review the appointment of statutory/
external auditors

- Annual audit and internal control review 
planning

- Review the following statements:

Audit Committee Report
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- Quarterly Financial Statements 

- Quarterly Operational Status Report 

- Monthly expenditure budget

- Monthly Fund Position

- The effectiveness of financial controls

- Monitoring the progress of Internal Audit

- The relationship with auditors and their 
independence; and 

Financial Reporting

The committee reviewed the effectiveness of financial 
reporting system in place to ensure that the information 
provided to the stakeholders is reliable and in strict 
adherence and compliance to the requirements of 
the International Accounting Standards as adopted by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh 
and disclosure requirements. The annual and interim 
Financial Statements prepared for disclosure, were 
reviewed by the Committee prior to submission to 
the Board for approval. Having assessed the internal 
financial controls, the Committee is of the view that 
adequate controls and procedures are in place to 
provide reasonable assurance that the Company’s 
assets are safeguarded and that the financial position 
of the Institute is well monitored.

Regulatory Compliance

The Company’s procedures in place to ensure 
compliance with the instructions of Central Bank of 
Bangladesh and statutory requirements were under 
close scrutiny. The Committee monitors the due 
compliance with all requirements through monthly 
and quarterly reporting submitted by the management 
and internal audit from time to time. 

Managing Risks

The Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the 
procedures established for identifying, assessing and 
managing risks. The Credit Risk Management was 
invited to make presentation on Risk Management 
measures adopted in their areas of responsibility. Risk 
rating guidelines with an appropriate Risk Grading 
Matrix has been formulated for identifying and 
assessing the operational risks. UBICO’s adherence to 
Risk Management measures approved by the Board is 
reviewed annually.

Control process & reporting system

The Committee monitored the control process and 
reporting system and has dedicated meeting time to 
understanding issues, assess progress and report on 
these to the Board of Directors. 

(Meeting in Progress)
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Integrity

The Committee has examined in details with the 
finance department and the auditors for ensuring the 
true and fair view of Annual Financial Statements.

Internal Audit

The internal audit has been carried out in regular 
interval. The internal auditors’ reports were reviewed 
annually to observe operational deficiencies and 
follow up the recommendations. 

external/Statutory Audit

M/S Aziz Halim Khair Chowdhury, Chartered 
Accountants was appointed auditor of UBICO at the 
27th Annual General Meeting held on January 28, 
2015. The auditors have conducted their audit on the 
financial statements for the year 2015 and given their 
unqualified report thereon. 

Bangladesh Bank Inspection

Central Bank has conducted 1 (one) inspection during 
the year 2015 and provided their observations. 
We have noted the observation and approved the 
response of the compliance report in respect of the 
recommendations made by the inspection team. 

Monitoring by Ministry of Finance, Government of 
Bangladesh

Ministry of Finance time to time reviews our activities 
as part of their surveillance accountability. Accordingly 
we submit various reports to the Ministry as and 
required. 

Approval of Financial Statements

The Audit Committee reviewed and examined the 
draft audited financial statements of UBICO for the 
year 2015 and recommended to the Board for approval 
of the same. 

 

Good Governance

Highest standards in Corporate Good Governance and 
strict adherence to the requirements of UBICO’s internal 
regulations are ensured throughout the company. 
Through implementation of good governance at all 
levels of staff have been educated and encouraged to 
comply with the rules and regulations very strictly. The 
Committee also ensures that appropriate procedures 
are in place to ensure corporate good governance. In 
this regard the committee has observed the activities of 
the following management committees constituted as 
per requirement of the Central Bank with concurrence 
of the Board:

- Executive Management Committee

- Credit Risk Management Committee

- Internal Control & Compliance Committee

- Asset liability Management Committee

- Integrity Committee

- Anti Money laundering Committee

- SME Finance Committee

- ICT Management Committee

Acknowledgement

The Audit Committee would like to express its thanks 
to the members of the Board, Key Management 
personnel and all employees for their dedication and 
efforts extended during the year 2015.

 Mushfeka Ikfat  Mohammed Farooque Shaikh
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To The Shareholder of The UAE-Bangladesh Investment Company limited

We have audited the accompanying financial 
statements of The UAE-Bangladesh Investment 
Company limited which comprise the Statement 
of Financial Position as at 31 December 2015 and 
the related Statement of Comprehensive Income, 
Cash Flow Statement, Statement of Changes in 
Shareholders’ Equity for the year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Financial 
Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and 
fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting 
Standards (BFRS), the Company Act 1994 and other 
Applicable laws and regulations. This responsibility 
includes designing, implementing, and maintaining 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting 
policies; and making accounting estimate that are 
reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Bangladesh 
Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 

considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.

opinion
In our opinion, the Financial Statements prepared 
in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting 
Standards, give a true and fair view of The UAE-
Bangladesh Investment Company limited as at 31 
December 2015, and the results of its operations 
and its cash flows for the period then and comply 
with the Companies Act, 1994, other applicable laws 
and regulations issued by the Bangladesh Bank, the 
Financial Institutions Act, 1993 and other applicable 
laws and regulations.

Further to our opinion in the above paragraph, we 
state that

a) we have obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of 
our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by The UAE-
Bangladesh Investment Company limited so 
far as it appeared from examination of those 
books;

c) the company’s Statements of Financial Position, 
Statement of Comprehensive Income  and its 

Auditor’s Report



Cash Flow  Statement dealt with by the report 
are in agreement with the books of accounts 
and returns;

d) the expenditure incurred was for the purpose 
of the company’s business;

e) the company’s Financial Position as of 31 
December 2015 and the profit for the year 
then ended have been properly reflected in 
the financial statements and the financial 
statements have been prepared in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles;

f ) the financial statements have been drawn up in 
conformity with the Financial Institutions Act, 

1993 and in accordance with the accounting 
rules and regulations issued by Bangladesh 
Bank to the extent applicable to the company;

g) adequate provisions have been made for loans 
which are, in our opinion, doubtful of recovery;

h) the financial statements conform to the 
prescribed standards set in accounting 
regulations issued by the Bangladesh Bank after 
consultation with the professional accounting 
bodies of Bangladesh;

i) the information and explanations required by 
us have been received and found satisfactory;

Dhaka, signed-

19 January 2016 Aziz Halim Khair Chowdhury
  Chartered Accountants
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The uAe-Bangladesh Investment Company limited
Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2015

notes
31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Taka Taka
pRopeRTIeS & ASSeTS

Cash  3  100,331  141,702 
Cash in hand  69,061  107,972 
Balance with Bangladesh Bank  31,270  33,730 

Balance with other banks and financial institutions  4  766,918,713  866,359,223 
In Bangladesh  766,918,713  866,359,223 
Outside Bangladesh  -    -   

Money at call and short notice  -    -   

Investments  5  6,159,791  4,687,691 
Government securities  -    -   
Other investments  6,159,791  4,687,691 

loans, leases and advances  6  723,302,220  542,961,272 
loans, leases and advances  723,302,220  542,961,272 
Bills purchased and discounted  -    -   

Fixed assets  7 4,654,362  875,972 
At cost 11,939,676  7,431,210 
less: Accumulated depreciation 7,285,314  6,555,238 

other assets  8  12,692,638  8,953,459 
Non-banking assets  -    -   
Total assets 1,513,828,056  1,423,979,319 

lIABIlITIeS AnD CApITAl

liabilities  27,360,219  20,006,682 
Borrowing from other banks, FI and agents  -    -   
Deposit and other accounts  -    -   
Other liabilities  9  27,360,219  20,006,682 

Shareholders’ equity  1,486,467,838  1,403,972,638 
Paid-up capital  10  1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000 
Reserves and surplus  11  486,467,838  403,972,638 

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity  1,513,828,056  1,423,979,319 

The annexed notes form an integral part of the Statement of Financial Position.

 signed-
Dr. S. M. Akbar 

 Managing Director 

 signed-
          Md. eunusur Rahman

  Deputy Chairman

 signed-
Faisal Al Suwaidi 

Chairman

This is the Statement of Financial Position referred to in our report of even date.

Dhaka,
19 January 2016

         signed-
   Aziz Halim Khair Choudhury 

 Chartered Accountants 

A H K C
Chartered Accountants
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The uAe-Bangladesh Investment Company limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended  31 December 2015

notes
31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Taka Taka

Interest income on loan, lease & advance  12  70,299,760  50,177,187 
Interest paid on deposits & borrowings  -    -   
net interest income on investments  70,299,760  50,177,187 
Investment income  13  1,745,268  12,131,665 
Commission, exchange and brokerage  -    -   
Other operating income  14  74,673,132  79,973,208 
Total operating income  146,718,160  142,282,060 

Salaries & allowances  14,351,617  13,560,812 
Rent, taxes, insurances, electricity, etc.  1,611,794  1,424,773 
legal and professional fees  1,025,880  1,433,250 
Postage, stamp, telecommunication, etc.  926,527  549,788 
Director's fee  120,000  100,000 
Stationery, printing, advertisement  875,275  621,157 
Managing director's salary & allowance  9,640,000  9,451,480 
Auditor's fee  115,000  74,750 
Charges on loan losses  -    -   
Repairs, improvements and depreciation  2,949,310  2,624,478 
Other expenses  15  9,054,252  10,165,991 
Total operating expenses   40,669,654  40,006,479 
profit/(loss) before provision  106,048,506  102,275,581 

provision for loans/investment
Specific provision - -
General provision  2,594,970  (2,516,097)
Provision for diminution in value of investment - -
Other provision  -    -   
Total provision  2,594,970  (2,516,097)
profit before taxes  103,453,536  104,791,679 
Provision for taxes
Current taxes - -
Deferred taxes  -    -   

 -    -   
profit/(loss) after taxes  103,453,536  104,791,679 

earnings per share  16  6,784  6,872 

The annexed notes form an integral part of the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

 signed-
Dr. S. M. Akbar 

 Managing Director 

 signed-
 Md. eunusur Rahman

Deputy Chairman

 signed-
Faisal Al Suwaidi 

Chairman

This is the Statement of Comprehensive Income referred to in our report of even date.

Dhaka,
19 January 2016

         signed-
   Aziz Halim Khair Choudhury 

 Chartered Accountants 

A H K C
Chartered Accountants
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signed-
Dr. S. M. Akbar 

 Managing Director 

signed-
Md. eunusur Rahman

Deputy Chairman

signed-
Faisal Al Suwaidi 

Chairman
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

Dhaka,
19 January 2016

         signed-
   Aziz Halim Khair Choudhury 

 Chartered Accountants 

31.12.2015 31.12.2014
Taka Taka

 a. Cash flows from operating activities  
Interest received in cash  140,424,020  133,684,885 
Interest paid in cash  -    -   
Dividend received in cash  263,168  195,819 
Interest received in sale of Equity Share
Recovery of loans previously written off  -    -   
Cash paid to employees  (20,450,154)  (23,012,292)
Cash paid to suppliers  (673,075)  (477,407)
Income taxes paid  -    -   
Received from other operating activities  934,392  (2,596,644)
Payments for other operating activities (17,806,091)  (13,674,146)

102,692,261  94,120,215 
Decrease/(increase) in operating assets and liabilities
Statutory deposit  -    -   
Trading securities  -    -   
loans, advances and leases to banks  -    -   
loans, advances and leases to customers  (180,340,948)  (142,335,536)
Investments  -    5,984,817 
Other assets  (130,175)  (699,324)
Deposit from other banks  -    -   
Deposit from customers  -    -   
Trading liabilities  -    -   
Other liabilities  3,812,074  (2,849,807)

 (176,659,049)  (139,899,851)
net cash used in operating activities

(73,966,788)  (45,779,636)
 b. Cash flows from investing activities

Net cash received from sales of securities  -    -   
Net cash paid for purchase of securities  -    -   
Net cash received from sales of fixed assets  18,200  -   
Net cash paid for purchase of fixed assets (4,574,957)  (518,465)
Net cash received/(paid) for sale/purchase of subsidiaries  -    -   
net cash used in investing activities (4,556,757)  (518,465)

 c. Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from loan and debt security  -    10,998,000 
Cash paid against loan and debt security  -    -   
Received against issuance of share  -    -   
Received against investment equilization fund  -    -   
Dividend paid  (20,958,336)  (18,159,662)
net cash flow from financing activities  (20,958,336)  (7,161,662)
Effect of unrealised gain/(loss) on foreign exchange reserve on cash and 
cash equivalent  -    (6,826,800)
net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (99,481,881)  (60,286,563)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  866,500,925  926,787,487 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year* 767,019,044  866,500,925 

*Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
Cash in hand  69,061  107,972 
Balance with Bangladesh Bank  31,270  33,730 
Balance with other banks and financial institutions  766,918,713  866,359,223 

 767,019,044  866,500,925 

The uAe-Bangladesh Investment Company limited
Cash Flows Statement

For the year ended  31 December 2015

A H K C
Chartered Accountants
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The uAe-Bangladesh Investment Company limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015

1. The company and its activities

The UAE-Bangladesh Investment Company limited, a non-banking financial institution having its registered office at 
Dhaka, Bangladesh was incorporated on 11 June 1987 as a private limited company under the Companies Act 1913. The 
company obtained license from Bangladesh Bank under the Financial Institutions Act 1993 on 18 December 1995. 

The principal objective of the company for which it was established is to make investments in the form of equity, term 
loan, lease finance, etc in financially viable projects in Bangladesh on commercial basis in all sectors of the economy.

2. Significant accounting policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with 
Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards, the Companies Act 1994, the Financial Institutions Act 1993, and 
other applicable rules and regulations.        

2.2 Accounting for term loan

This represents short-term and long-term finance made by the company. These term loans are recorded and 
reported based on the accrual basis of accounting. Outstanding loans, along with the accrued interest thereon, 
are accounted for as direct finance assets of the company. 

2.3 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized on accrual basis in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standard-18. 

2.4 Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is charged using straight-line method 
at the rates varying from 10% to 25% considering the estimated useful lives of the assets. Full year’s depreciation 
is charged on assets acquired within the first half of the year whereas half year’s depreciation is charged for those 
assets which are acquired in the second half of the year. Depreciation is charged on a proportionate time basis 
for the disposal of assets in the second half of the year. However, no depreciation is charged on assets disposed 
in the first half of the year. Maintenance and repairing costs are charged to revenue as and when incurred. 

2.5 Share capital 

Share capital of the company is stated in Bangladesh Taka in these accounts although this is denominated in US 
Dollars in the share scrip and share register and also stated in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of 
the company. The share money contribution in US Dollars has been translated into Bangladesh Taka at the rates 
ruling on the dates of receipt of such money.  

2.6 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Bangladesh Taka at the mid buying and selling rates prevailing 
on the dates of transactions. Assets and liabilities in foreign currency at 31 December 2015 were translated into 
Taka at the year end mid exchange rate. 

2.7 Provision for loans, leases and advances

Provision is made on loans, leases and advances in accordance with Bangladesh Bank’s FID Circular no. 8 dated 
03 August 2002 and DFIM Circular letter no. 03 dated 29 April 2013.     

2.8 Statutory reserve

This has been created as a statutory requirement in compliance with clause 6 of the Financial Institutions 
Regulations 1994.

A H K C
Chartered Accountants
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2.9 Post employment benefit

The company has recognized its gratuity obligation by creating a gratuity fund in order to comply with the 
requirements of International Accounting Standard-19 and Employees’ Service Rules.

2.10 Taxation

The company enjoyed tax exemption facility for a period of 10 years which expired in 2007. The company has 
also obtained further tax exemption facility for an unlimited period with effect from 01-07-2012 as per SRO 
No. 313-AIN/2012 dated 11-09-2012. However, as per a bi-lateral agreement dated 08-06-1987 between the 
Governments of Bangladesh and UAE, the company has applied to concerned authorities for allowing tax 
exemption with retrospective effect from 01-01-2008. 

2.11 Earning per share

The company calculates Earning Per Share (EPS) in accordance with BAS-33: Earning Per Share, which has been 
shown at the bottom of the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the computation of EPS is stated in note # 16.

 2.12 General

i. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Taka.
ii. Previous year’s figures have been rearranged wherever considered necessary to conform to the current 

year’s presentation.

31.12.2015
 Taka 

31.12.2014 
Taka 

 3. Cash

Cash in hand  69,061  107,972 

Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent bank  31,270  33,730 

 100,331  141,702 

 4. Balance with other banks and financial institutions

local currency (Note : 4.1)  763,693,847  705,078,499 

Foreign currency  3,224,866  161,280,724 

 766,918,713  866,359,223 
4.1 local currency

Fixed deposit account  481,276,601  460,544,336 
Converted fixed deposit account  279,670,790  232,025,080 
Savings bank deposit account  940,098  12,068,859 
Short term deposit account  1,806,358  440,224 

 763,693,847  705,078,499 

 5. Investment

Government securities  -    -   

Other investment (Note : 5.1)  6,159,791  4,687,691 

 6,159,791  4,687,691 

5.1 Investment in listed shares

Khulna Power Company limited  6,159,791  4,687,691 
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31.12.2015
 Taka 

31.12.2014
 Taka 

 6. loans, leases and advances
loans, leases and advances (Note : 6.1)  704,136,982  538,568,494 
House Building loan to Employee (Note : 6.2)  19,165,238  4,392,778 

 723,302,220  542,961,272 
6.1 loans, leases and advances

Term loan (Note : 6.1.1)  704,136,982  538,568,494 

6.1.1 Term loan
Opening balance  538,568,494  395,625,736 
Add: Disbursed during the year  430,000,000  520,000,000 

 968,568,494  915,625,736 
less: Realized during the year  264,431,512  377,057,242 

 704,136,982  538,568,494 
6.1.1.1 Term loan - current portion

Opening balance  209,367,291  131,128,475 
Add: Addition during the year  274,454,841  197,549,437 

 483,822,132  328,677,912 
less : Realized during the year  202,167,291  116,907,144 
less : Waived during the year  -    2,403,477 

 281,654,841  209,367,291 

6.2 House Building loan to employee
Opening balance  4,392,778  5,000,000 
Add: Disbursed during the year  16,500,000  -   

 20,892,778  5,000,000 
less: Realized during the year  1,727,540  607,222 

 19,165,238  4,392,778 

7. Fixed assets 

A.    Cost
Opening balance 7,431,210  6,912,745 
Add: Charged during the year 4,574,957  518,465 

12,006,166  7,431,210 
less: Disposal during the year 66,490  -   

11,939,676  7,431,210 
B.    Accumulated depreciation

Opening balance 6,555,238  6,228,701 
Add: Charged during the year 793,842  326,537 

7,349,079  6,555,238 
less: Adjustment for disposal during the year 63,765  -   

7,285,314  6,555,238 
C.    Written down value (A-B) 4,654,362  875,972 

8. other assets
Advance, deposits and prepayments (Note : 8.1)  1,403,923  1,273,748 
Income receivables (Note : 8.2)  11,288,715  7,679,711 

 12,692,638  8,953,459 
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31.12.2015
 Taka 

31.12.2014
 Taka 

8.1 Advance, deposits and prepayments (Note : 8.1.1)

Opening balance  1,273,748  429,776 
Add: Addition during the year  6,157,189  1,866,777 

 7,430,937  2,296,553 
less: Adjusted during the year  6,027,014  1,022,805 

 1,403,923  1,273,748 

8.1.1 Advance, deposits and prepayments
Advance rent  30,250  39,250 
loan to staff  9,183  19,179 
Advance against salary  1,019,294  387,000 
Withholding income tax on dividend/ interest  -    176,250 
Advance Tax  186,767  -   
Other receivable and advance  59,985  554,069 
BO Account  444  -   
Security deposits:
      ISD telephones (3 nos.)  42,000  42,000 
      Fax  10,000  10,000 
      Mobile for officers (8 nos.)  36,000  36,000 
      Gulshan Service Station   10,000  10,000 

 1,403,923  1,273,748 

8.2 Income receivables (Note : 8.2.1)
Opening balance  7,679,711  7,824,358 
Add: Addition during the year  34,838,482  30,864,578 

 42,518,192  38,688,936 
less: Realized during the year  31,229,477  31,009,225 

 11,288,715  7,679,711 

8.2.1 Income receivables
FDR 3,831,089 4,333,496
Converted FDR 1,334,516 3,293,530
US$ Account - 52,685
Term loan 6,123,110 -

11,288,715  7,679,711 
9. other liabilities

liabilities for expenses (Note : 9.1)  3,671,530  113,247 
Provision for loans and investments (Note : 9.2)  7,820,190  5,225,220 
Gratuity fund (Note : 9.3)  15,813,492  14,667,166 
Privileged Creditors  55,007  1,049 

 27,360,219  20,006,682 
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31.12.2015 
Taka 

31.12.2014
 Taka 

9.1 liabilities for expenses 

Telephone bill  15,067  14,497 
Audit fees  115,000  74,750 
Others  3,541,463  24,000 

 3,671,530  113,247 

9.2 provision for loans and investments

Term loan (Note : 9.2.1)  7,820,190  5,225,220 
Investment  -    -   

 7,820,190  5,225,220 

9.2.1 provision for term loans

Opening balance  5,225,220  10,144,794 
Add: Provision made during the year  3,288,248  13,335,135 

 8,513,468  23,479,929 
less: Written back during the year  693,278  18,254,709 

 7,820,190  5,225,220 

Provisions for loans and investments have been made as per FID circular no. 08 dated 03/08/2002 and DFIM circular 
letter no. 03 dated 29/04/2013 issued by the Financial Institutions Department of Bangladesh Bank. 

9.3 Gratuity fund
Opening balance  14,667,166  10,347,244 
Add: Provision made during the year  1,146,326  4,319,922 

 15,813,492  14,667,166 
less: Settlement made during the year  -    -   

 15,813,492  14,667,166 

As required by the Employees’ Service Rules of the company, employees are entitled to get gratuity at specified rates 
as stated therein. Accordingly, the Board of Directors has decided and approved to create a gratuity fund in its 29th 
meeting held on 11th October 2009 in order to comply with the said requirement as well as with the requirements of 
International Accounting Standard- 19. 
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10. Share capital

Authorised

15,250 ordinary shares of US$ 1,000 each.

  name of shareholders
% of 

holding
number 
of shares

Amount 
in   uS$

Amount in  equivalent Taka

31.12.2015 31.12.2014

Abu Dhabi Fund for Development (ADF) 60%  9,150  9,150,000 
 6,100,000 

 600,000,000  600,000,000 

Government of Bangladesh (GoB) 40%  6,100  400,000,000  400,000,000 
100%  15,250  15,250,000  1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000 

The amount of authorised capital in US Dollars has been translated into Bangladesh Taka.

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

15,250 ordinary shares of US$ 1,000 each fully paid.

The contributions by the sponsors towards share capital was as below:

  name of shareholders
% of 

holding
number of shares

Amount in 
uS$

Amount in  equivalent Taka
31.12.2015 31.12.2014

A. Initial Contribution:

Abu Dhabi Fund for Development (ADF) 60%  3,000  3,000,000  96,810,000  96,810,000 

Government of Bangladesh (GoB) 40%  2,000  2,000,000  61,000,000  61,000,000 

100%  5,000  5,000,000  157,810,000  157,810,000 

B. Bonus share issued:

Abu Dhabi Fund for Development (ADF) 60%  2,400  2,400,000  203,190,000  203,190,000 

Government of Bangladesh (GoB) 40%  1,600  1,600,000  139,000,000  139,000,000 

100%  4,000  4,000,000  342,190,000  342,190,000 

C. new ordinary share issued:

Abu Dhabi Fund for Development (ADF) 60%  3,750  3,750,000  300,000,000  300,000,000 

Government of Bangladesh (GoB) 40%  2,500  2,500,000  200,000,000  200,000,000 

100%  6,250  6,250,000  500,000,000  500,000,000 

D. Total paid-up Capital (A+B+C):

Abu Dhabi Fund for Development (ADF) 60%  9,150  9,150,000  600,000,000  600,000,000 

Government of Bangladesh (GoB) 40%  6,100  6,100,000  400,000,000  400,000,000 

100%  15,250  15,250,000  1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000 

The amount of paid-up capital in US Dollars has been translated into Bangladesh Taka at different rates at respective 
prevailing dates.
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31.12.2015
 Taka 

31.12.2014
 Taka 

11. Reserve & surplus

Statutory reserve (Note : 11.1)  179,617,807  158,927,100 
Special reserve (Note : 11.2)  76,587,812  55,897,105 
Investment equalization fund (Note : 11.3)  2,000,000  2,000,000 
Tax reserve (Note : 11.4)  68,281,831  68,281,831 
Retained earnings (Note : 11.5)  139,289,680  97,908,266 
Proposed divedend  20,690,707  20,958,336 

 486,467,838  403,972,638 

11.1 Statutory reserve
Opening balance  158,927,100  137,968,764 
Add: Transfer during the year  20,690,707  20,958,336 

 179,617,807  158,927,100 
less: Amount transferred to retained earnings  -    -   

 179,617,807  158,927,100 

This is created by transfer of post-tax profit in terms of clause 6 of the Financial Institution Regulation 1994.

11.2 Special reserve
Opening balance  55,897,105  34,938,769 

Add: Transfer during the year  20,690,707  20,958,336 

 76,587,812  55,897,105 

This is created from post tax profit as per requirement of clause 71 of Articles of  Association of the company.

11.3 Investment equalization fund

Opening balance  2,000,000  8,826,800 

less: Amount adjusted during the year  -    6,826,800 

 2,000,000  2,000,000 

11.4 Tax reserve
Opening balance  68,281,831  68,281,831 

Add: Addition during the year  -    -   

 68,281,831  68,281,831 

11.5 Retained earnings 
Opening balance  97,908,266  55,991,595 

Add: Unappropriated profit transferred from Statement of Comprehensive Income  103,453,536  104,791,679 

 201,361,802  160,783,274 

less: Amount transfer to statutory reserve  20,690,707  20,958,336 

          Amount transfer to Special reserve  20,690,707  20,958,336 

          Amount transfer to proposed dividend  20,690,707  20,958,336 

 62,072,122  62,875,008 

 139,289,680  97,908,266 
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31.12.2015
 Taka 

31.12.2014
 Taka 

12. Interest income on loan, lease and advance
Term loan  70,299,760  50,177,187 
lease and other advances  -    -   

 70,299,760  50,177,187 

13. Investment income

Profit on Investment in shares  1,472,100  841,983 
Dividend on investment in shares of Khulna Power Co. ltd.  263,168  195,819 
Profit on sale of ordinary shares  -    10,998,000 
Other Investment Income  10,000  95,863 

1,745,268 12,131,665
14. other operating income

Interest on deposit with banks   (Note : 14.1)  75,468,533  83,703,518 
Profit/(loss) on sale of fixed assets  15,475  -   
loss on exchange rate fluctuation  (810,876)  (3,730,310)

 74,673,132  79,973,208 

14.1 Interest on deposit with banks
Fixed deposit  41,862,174  40,345,586 
Converted fixed deposit  32,048,531  40,143,698 
Foreign currency deposit  341,699  2,478,097 
Short term deposit account  85,267  74,332 
Savings account  1,130,861  661,805 

 75,468,533  83,703,518 

15 other expenses
Books  -    2,580 
Bank charges  68,501  57,065 
Business development expenditure  946,512  1,203,767 
Entertainment- office  376,681  200,935 
Entertainment- business  123,119  234,176 
Hotel expenses  615,183  765,762 
local conveyance  177,900  196,080 
Motor vehicles - POl  985,361  1,285,497 
Motor vehicles - other expenses  74,280  73,870 
Office supplies  31,213  29,354 
Subscription - newspaper & periodicals  44,094  43,420 
Traveling - foreign  4,372,337  3,995,200 
Traveling - inland  33,400  23,375 
Training - officer & staff  126,500  104,500 
Uniform  32,290  26,162 
VAT & duty  401,000  375,000 
Wages to casual workers  71,000  24,000 
Miscellaneous expenses  321,881  84,975 
CSR Expenses  253,000  1,440,273 

 9,054,252  10,165,991 
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31.12.2015
 Taka 

31.12.2014
 Taka 

16 earnings per Share (epS)
Net profit after tax (Numerator)  103,453,536  104,791,679 

Weighted Average Number of ordinary shares outstanding  15,250  15,250 

Earning Per Share (EPS)  6,784  6,872 

17 others

17.1 Board meeting and Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ fee is paid as attendance fee for attending a meeting of the Board of Directors as per Bangladesh Bank 
Guideline. No other remuneration was paid to the Directors for attending board meetings or otherwise during the year 
2015. Nothing is due from any Director of the Company as on the date of closing the accounts. During the year under 
audit four Board of Directors’ meetings were held.

 signed-
Dr. S. M. Akbar 

 Managing Director 

 signed-
   Md. eunusur Rahman

  Deputy Chairman

 signed-
Faisal Al Suwaidi 

Chairman

Dhaka,
19 January 2016

         signed-
   Aziz Halim Khair Choudhury 

 Chartered Accountants 
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